ﬁ Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the
other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this task,
please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2018) or you may not be assigned
the correct tasks.

a. SCHOOL NAME RIVERHEAD CS (REGENTS)

(Select name from the drop down menu)

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of Regents-Authorized Charter School
June 30th, 2018)

(For technical reasons, please re-select
authorizer name from the drop down
menu).

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION Riverhead

dl. SCHOOL INFORMATION

PRIMARY ADDRESS PHONE NUMBER FAX NUMBER EMAIL ADDRESS

3685 middle countr
rd.

d2. PHONE CONTACT NUMBER FOR AFTER HOURS EMERGENCIES

Contact Name Raymond Ankrum

Title Superintendent

Emergency Phone Number (###-###- _
HHH#H)

e. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) www.riverheadcharterschool.org

f. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 01/2001
g. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 09/2001
INSTRUCTION
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http://www.riverheadcharterschool.org/
mailto:F@GKJDn.EDJGFHEJIDJHJGKEJHDJAJHJLG
mailto:NE0EGG?pS@GKJDn.EHJCKFDGEDJDFKJJE
mailto:AEEF?EJEG?@DEJGKFGJ5J@J?EEEFGJGKEJFJDDEFGJF@GKJDn.EDJhTiJORJjkFYJlmnJomKpqJJDJ5J@JHF5JGJGJ4EJF??n0GEH
mailto:JGKEDJGF?6?JF??n0GEHJGJJ5J@J45J5J@DJF@GKJDn.EDJFDEJ1n?n4EEJJGJ5J@DJGF?6JAF0E/J7KnEEJFJHAEEGnG0JGKn?JGF?6o

hl. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized
schools only)

MISSION STATEMENT

Our mission is to inspire today’s learners to become tomorrow’s leaders by setting high academic
standards, promoting solution-orientated thinking, and embracing the cultural diversity of our

community.

h2. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools

only)

KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements
(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s
mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The
design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be
served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems.

Variable 1 A uniquely affirming and supportive school culture:
RCS maintains a diverse population, drawing from over a
dozen school districts, reflecting the population of Eastern
Long Island. Students receive classes in special areas such
as physical education, art, world language, music,
technology and theater. Morning meetings for grades K-5 and
Advisory for middle school students allow students an
opportunity to lead and govern themselves. Students
develop personal connections, leadership qualities,
organization and communication skills while teachers
facilitating meaningful conversations amongst students,
developing rapport and classroom culture. During both the
school day and in the evening, RCS engages the entire
school community in celebrations such as; Black History
Month, Multicultural Night, and Hispanic Heritage Month.
Families eagerly participate in these annual events,
celebrate unique individuality and infusing our cultures.

Variable 2 Deep linkages to the surrounding community and project
based learning:
RCS students have regular opportunities to engage with the
surrounding communities. They enjoy (extended learning
experiences) trips to local parks, museums, and historical
sites. RCS partners with different organizations: Cornell
Cooperative, Long Island University, St. Joseph’s College,
Stony Brook University, & Project Fit America, Brookhaven
Labs to explore, learn from experts in their field. We are
currently partnering with Cornell to create a community
garden and learn about eating a healthy diet and proper
exercise. We have also established a plan to be a host
schools for a greenhouse, teaching our students how to eat
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mailto:JD0FGn.FGnJGJFGHJFJHH@GnFFGnJGJ?6nEE?JLKnEEJGEFFKED
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Variable 3

Variable 4
Variable 5
Variable 6
Variable 7
Variable 8
Variable 9

Variable 10

healthy and self-sustain. The ultimate goal is to improve
student cooperation, empathy and mutual respect as well as
foster greater inclusion and connectedness while utilizing the
Sanford Harmony program. Students in grades Kindergarten
through 5th grade will develop a respect and understanding
of differences among all children, fostering empathy. RCS
was awarded a grant through Project Fit America and will
receive ongoing training and collaboration through Peconic
Bay Medical Center. We are also incorporating mindfulness
learning to help students deal better with adverse situations.

A focus on quality of instruction based on individual student
needs:

RCS follows the guidelines of the New York State Common
Core Standards to inform a rigorous instructional program.
RCS provides a longer school day and school year, and also
offers full day kindergarten. Our instruction is driven based
on data obtained throughout the school year. The use of
benchmark, diagnostic, formative and summative
assessment are used to determine academic needs and
provide evidence of student growth. A concrete emphasis on
data and how we can use this data to help each individual
learner is an ongoing focus within the instructional program.
RCS utilizes multiple intelligence and innovative technology
solutions to engage students in motivating learning
experiences. Technology is incorporated into the classroom
by use of document cameras, projectors, ipads, classroom
computers to enhance student engagement and access to
differentiated learning opportunities. K-5 students work in a
workshop model where they have the opportunity to explore
and investigate. Students learn from one another by sharing
ideas and findings within a discourse. All teachers work
collaboratively when developing unit, lesson and
individualized learning plans. Staff also participate in a two
week summer professional learning program, and engage in
weekly professional learning experiences in order to best
meet the needs of their students and further develop their
instructional practices.

(No response)
(No response)
(No response)
(No response)
(No response)
(No response)

(No response)
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i. TOTAL ENROLLMENT ON JUNE 481
30, 2018

j- GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2017-18
Check all that apply

Grades Served K,1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8
k1. DOES THE SCHOOL No
CONTRACT WITH A CHARTER OR

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT
ORGANIZATION?

11. FACILITIES
Does the school maintain or operate multiple sites?

No, just one site.

12. SCHOOL SITES
Please list the sites where the school will operate for the upcoming school year.

Physical Phone District/CSD  Grades Receives Rental
Address Number Served at Rental Assistance
Site (K-5, 6-9, Assistance for Which
etc.) Grades (write
N/A if
applicable)
Site 1
(same .
as 3685 middle Riverhead K-5 No
. country rd
primary
site)
Site 2
Site 3
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I12a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1.

Name

School
Leader

Laura Arcuri

Operati
onal
Leader

Complia
nce
Contact

Complai
nt
Contact

DASA

Coordin  Laura Arcuri

ator

Work Phone

ml. Are any sites in co-located No

space? If yes, please proceed to

the next question.

5/8

Alternate Phone

Email Address




IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC

m3. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) for each school site that
is located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC. Except for schools in

district space (co-location space), school must provide a copy of the annual fire
inspection report.

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO)

(631) 727-3200

Ext. 213, 268, 266, 283

Date: July 5,2018

ated at the premises above, conforms

ifications heretofore filed in this office

No. ZB39933 dated Februaty 9, 2014 and conforms to
Construction Type: 2 B

201 Howell Avenue
Riverhead, New York 11901-2596

the law. The occupancy for which this is issued is:

Town of Riverhead
Building Department
3685 Middle Country Road, Calverton, NY
Two story school building:

as per Resolution #21 dated February 21,2013

;
3
g
:
3
;
]
:

38513

ZB39933

0600/99.-2-9.1
CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY" :
: completed)

This Certificate is issued to the aforesaid owner as described above.

K:2015.Commercial\39933.CharterSchool.ext.Jan.20 19.doc

substantially to the approved plans and speci

with Building-Zoning Permit

THIS CERTIFIES that the building (s) loc:

all of the applicable provisions of

Occupancy Type: E

Application No.
Tax Map No.
No. 25968

Location:

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/resp/17978591/nBJtmagxAKU/

Site 2 Certificate of Occupancy

(No response)

Site 2 Fire Inspection Report

(No response)

Site 3 Certificate of Occupancy

(No response)
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https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/resp/17978591/nBJtmqxAKU/

Site 3 Fire Inspection Report

(No response)

nl. Were there any revisionsto No
the school’s charter during the
2017-18 school year? (Please
include approved or pending
material and non-material

charter revisions).

o. Name and Position of Raymond Ankrum
Individual(s) Who Completed this
Annual Report.

p. Our signatures (Head of School and Board President) below attest that all of the
information contained herein is truthful and accurate and that this charter school is
in compliance with all aspects of its charter, and with all pertinent Federal, State, and
local laws, regulations, and rules. We understand that if any information in any part
of this report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute
grounds for the revocation of our charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the
mouse on your PC or the stylist on your mobile device to sign your name).

Yes

Signature, Head of Charter School

718



Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

Date 2018/08/03

Thank you.
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TOWN OF RIVERHEAD

OFFICE OF THE FIRE MARSHAL
201 Howell Avenue, Riverhead, New York 11901
631-727-3200 x 601

ANNUAL CERTIFICATION of INSPECTION and T ESTING
(Pursuant to Section 231-13C Town of Riverhead Code)
FIRE ALARM SYSTEM

CAUTION: Notify all occupants and any agencies who might respond before testing system.
Failure to do so may result in legal action against the inspector.

PLEASE PRINT ALL INFORMATION
Name of Premises/Business: ‘R\FRMEPD (Mberen cibvo
Address of Premises: __ 2697 MA90LE GounTRY npape CALVERW Y £423
Fire District: zl\féﬁﬂ*ﬂﬂ) £ Name of Owner or Agent present: K‘( e W\ H;tN\NQ

Is Occupancy HAZARD CLASSIFICATION same as previous test?:

Type of System: Does System report to Centml Station: \(Ei '
(Manual, Automatic, Voice Evacuation, etc)

Name of Central Station: V@ |49) ResSood Qé Phon_‘UL Listed?
S

List all deficiencies noted:

Were all deficiencies noted above corrected? —_ Ifnot, why:

Name of Iﬁspecting Firm: STP&Q— ol Pretetriend C’D -

Qo_hDDd WE_BUBRS Ak Y
Expiration Date: /[ ~/7—/ 5

Date of Inspection: 4 f {3 11

Address of Inspecting Firm: 214 -

NYS Alam License Number

Phone Number of Inspecting

CERTIFICATION: 1, an employee of the Inspecting Firm listed above, do hereb certify that the Alarm System described above
was inspected in accordance with the applicable portions of REPREDA %l This Certification does not imply that items
requiring daily, weekly, monthly or quarterly inspection or testing were performed at the specified intervals, but does imply that all
such jtems were fnspected or tested and appear to function as noted in this certification at the time of inspection. I certify that this
inspection has been properly conducted and all of the sbove statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

JAD Tomasaycys Mf n/ ul W

PRINT name of Inspector s@«mjma of Inspector L Date

File Form with original sicnature to the Fire Marshal Office at above address. DO NOT send fax
ANY FALSE STATEMENT MADE HEREIN IS PUNISHABLE AS A MISDEMEANOR

Revised 10.17



ﬁ Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link

Last updated: 08/02/2018

RIVERHEAD CS (REGENTS)

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of REGENTS-Authorized Charter School
June 30th, 2018)
(For technical reasons, please re-select

authorizer name from the drop down
menu).

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT https://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?instid=800000036919
CARD

Provide a direct URL or web link
to the most recent New York
State School Report Card for the
charter school (See
https://reportcards.nysed.govy/).
(Charter schools completing year
one will not yet have a School
Report Card or link to one. Please

type "URL is not available" in the
space provided).
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https://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?instid=800000036919

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals
Created: 08/03/2018 « Last updated: 10/23/2018

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS

Board of Regents-authorized and NYCDOE-authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided.
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether
the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st.

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by
November 1st.

2017-18 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academic Student Measure Used to Goal - Met or Not Met Indicate if data is not
Performance Goal Evaluate Progress available. If/when
Toward Attainment of available, Describe
Goal Efforts School Will
Take If Goal Is Not
Met

High Expectations
RCS has clearly
defined and
measurable high
expectations for

academic informal and formal
achievement and assessments. We will
strong character. continue to monitor
Academ Students, parents, student progress .
ic Goal teachers, andl staff through the use of Met DCl's will model and
1 create and reinforce NWEA, F&P coach teachers.
a culture of assessments,
achievement and quarterly
support through a assessments, and
range of formal and state assessments.
informal rewards and
consequences for
academic
performance and
behavior.
Academ
ic Goal
2
Academ
ic Goal
3
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Academ
ic Goal
4

Academ
ic Goal
5

Academ
ic Goal
6

Academ
ic Goal
7

Academ
ic Goal
8

2. Do have more academic goals No
to add?

3. Do have more academic goals No
to add?

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS
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2017-18 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals

Organizational Measure Used to Goal - Met or Not If Not Met,
Goal Evaluate Progress  Met Describe Efforts
School Will Take

Culture of the staff

places high

emphasis on staff

members as

teachers and

learners from each

other. Staff share Staff and parent
best practices, surveys
and share a

relentless

commitment to

high expectations

for themselves

and others.

Org Goal 1 Met

Students, their
parents, and the
teachers of RCS
choose to
participate in the
program. No one is

assigned or forced _
to attend RCS. continued check

Org Goal 2 ins with families Met
Everyone must

make and uphold and staff.
a commitment to
the school and to
each other to put
in the time and
effort required to
achieve success.

Org Goal 3

Org Goal 4

Org Goal 5

5. Do you have more No

organizational goals to add?

6. FINANCIAL GOALS
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2017-18 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals

Financial Goals Measure Used to Goal - Met or Not If Not Met,
Evaluate Progress  Met Describe Efforts
School Will Take

Financial Goal 1 Met
Financial Goal 2
Financial Goal 3
Financial Goal 4

Financial Goal 5

4/4



Entry 4 Expenditures per Child

Created: 08/02/2018 -« Last updated: 08/03/2018

RIVERHEAD CS (REGENTS)Section Heading

Financial Information
This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures

Per Child):

1. Total Expenditures Per Child

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2017-
18 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enroliment.
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas).

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41-43 of the
Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil

calculations: http://www.pl2.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html

Line 1: Total Expenditures 5582480
Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 481

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 11606
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http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child
To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per

Child” first add together the following:

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’
column (from the unaudited 2017-18 Schedule of Functional Expenses)

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year-end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must
be included in this calculation is defined as follows:

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the
activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also
includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations
on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program.

Notes:

The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41-43 of the Audit Guide
can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations:
http://www.pl12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html.

Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations.

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services

Cost (Row) 2455939
Line 2: Management and General Cost 744921
(Column)

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 3200860
Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End 6655

FTE student enrollment

Thank you.
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’” REPORT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Riverhead Charter School, Inc.
3685 Middle Country Road
Calverton, New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Riverhead Charter School, Inc. (a not-for-profit
corporation, “the School”), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2018 and
2017, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the School’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

Connected

morial Highway ® Bohemia, NY 11716
oclates.com
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the School as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 15,
2018 on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Bohemia, New York
October 15, 2018



RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018 2017
ASSETS (Note 7)
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3)...........c.ccoeviiiiiiiiiiininnn, $ 8,974,966 9,182,731
Investments (INOtE 2)......c.ouiuiiiiiiitiiiiri e, 59,966 59,857
Accounts receivable (NOte 5).........c.viviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiea 154,472 244,169
Grants receivable (NOte 5)........c.ouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie 177,638 88,802
Prepaid expenses............cccooioiiiiiiiiiiiii 21,093 12,596
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 9,388,135 9,588,155
Property and equipment, net (Notes 4 and 7) 17,920,859 16,596,901
Restricted cash (Notes 3, 6 and 7).........coeviviiniiiiiiiiiiniiinenen, 2,691,952 2,686,680
TOTAL ASSETS $ 30,000,946 28,871,736
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:
Current portion of bonds payable, net of
unamortized bond issuance costs (Note 7).........cceovevvininiininens $ 283,857 273,857
Current portion of capital lease payable..............c..ccccceeiiniinn... 13,440 13,440
Interest payable (NOte 7).........oouiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 593,916 601,532
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ..............cc..cooiiiiiinnnn. 998,732 756,930
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,889,945 1,645,759
Bonds payable, net of current portion
and unamortized bond issuance costs (Note 7)............c.ccoeveninnen. 19,523,300 19,802,375
Capital lease payable, net of current portion.................c..c.coveienen. 17,920 31,360
TOTAL LIABILITIES 21,431,165 21,479,494
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 3, 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10)
Net Assets:
Unrestricted. .. ..o 8,458,550 7,295,153
Temporarily restricted (Note 8)..........cooeiiiiiiiiiiiii, 111,231 97,089
TOTAL NET ASSETS 8,569,781 7,392,242
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 30,000,946 28,871,736

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT (Note 7):
Accounts receivable (NOte 5).........cveiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiine, $ 8,378,930 $ 111,231 $ 8,490,161
Government grants (Notes 3 and 6)...............ccoeeviieininneee. 392,559 - 392,559
Investment income (Note 2).........cccveiiiiiiiiiiiniiiinienne. 20,558 - 20,558
Other income (NOte 3).......cc.iuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 19,609 - 19,609
Net assets released from restriction (Note 8)......................... 97,089 (97,089) -
TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 8,908,745 14,142 8,922,887

EXPENSES:

Program services.............cocooiiiiiiiiiiiiii 6,976,933 - 6,976,933
Management and general...................ooo 768,415 - 768,415
TOTAL EXPENSES 7,745,348 - 7,745,348
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,163,397 14,142 1,177,539
Net assets, beginning of year................cccoiviiiiiiiiiinennnn. 7,295,153 97,089 7,392,242
Net assets, nd Of Year........c..veuviiniiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiicieieeeas $ 8,458,550 $ 111,231 $ 8,569,781

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT:
Accounts receivable (NOte 5).........ccoeuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiniininen . $ 7,004,618 $ - 7,004,618
Government grants (Notes 3 and 6).............c...cooeeeiiin. 240,318 - 240,318
Investment income (Note 2).........c.cveiiiiiiiiiiiininiien.n. 18,056 - 18,056
Other income (Notes 3 and 7)..........cccoooviiiiiiiniinnininnnnn. 24,372 - 24,372
Net assets released from restriction (Note 8)....................... 2,543 (2,543) -
TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 7,289,907 (2,543) 7,287,364

EXPENSES:

Program services.............cooooiiiiiiiiiiiiii 5,565,140 - 5,565,140
Management and general................ooviiiiiiiiniiiiinien 738,926 - 738,926
TOTAL EXPENSES 6,304,066 - 6,304,066
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 985,841 (2,543) 983,298
Net assets, beginning of year..............c..ccooiviiiiiiiininninnnn. 6,309,312 99,632 6,408,944
Net assets, end Of Year...........ccveviiiiiiiiiniiiiiiieiiinc e, $ 7,295,153 $ 97,089 7,392,242

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Program Services

No. of Regular Special Management
Positions Education Education Total and General Total

Personnel services costs
Administrative staff personnel................................ 16 $ 253,290 $ 8,195 $ 261,485 $ 391,390 $ 652,875
Instructional personnel....................o.o 57 2,846,511 92,095 2,938,606 - 2,938,606
Non-instructional personnel........................... 3 66,405 2,148 68,554 8,384 76,938
Total salaries and staff.................cccovviiiiiiinnn, 76 3,166,206 102,438 3,268,645 399,774 3,668,419
Fringe benefits and payroll taxes (Note 9)....................... 929,095 30,060 959,155 117,310 1,076,465
Advertising...........cooiiiiiiiiii 634 20 654 80 734
OCCUPANCY ... 112,043 3,625 115,668 8,134 123,802
Contracted ServiCes........o.oviiriiiiiii i 193,593 6,263 199,856 24,444 224,300
Travel and transportation......................oo. 12,890 417 13,307 1,628 14,935
SUPPLES. ... 104,965 3,396 108,361 13,253 121,614
Core curriCulum. ... ..ot 40,301 1,304 41,605 - 41,605
Telephone and communications....................c..ooeenie, 12,904 417 13,321 937 14,258
Repairs and maintenance...................cooooeiiiiniinn. 187,806 6,076 193,882 13,635 207,517
Equipment.............oooi 7,983 258 8,241 580 8,821
Studentmeals...........ooiiiiiiiiii 259,109 8,383 267,492 - 267,492
Depreciation and amortization.......................... 508,945 16,466 525,411 36,950 562,361
Interest expense, net of subsidized interest (Note 7).......... 1,101,381 35,634 1,137,015 79,962 1,216,977
CONfEINCES. . vttt e 32,532 1,053 33,585 4,107 37,692
Recruitment..........coooiiiiiiii e 832 27 859 105 964
INSUTranCe........ooieii 49,661 1,607 51,268 3,605 54,873
Bad debt expense................cooiii - - - 59,189 59,189
MiSCEllanEOUS. .....viee it 37,398 1,210 38,608 4,722 43,330
$ 6,758,278 $ 218,654 $ 6,976,933 $ 768,415 $ 7,745,348

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

Program Services

No. of Regular Special Management
Positions Education Education Total and General Total

Personnel services costs
Administrative staff personnel..................c..co.o 12 $ 287,515 $ 15,012 $ 302,527 $ 317,150 $ 619,677
Instructional personnel.............c.ocoveiiiiiiiiniiieiiiininn.. 58 1,869,996 97,639 1,967,635 - 1,967,635
Non-instructional personnel...............c..ccooeiiniiin.e. 3 67,628 3,531 71,159 9,941 81,100
Total salaries and staff...............c.coviiiiiiiiiiiiiinns, 73 2,225,139 116,182 2,341,321 327,091 2,668,412
Fringe benefits and payroll taxes (Note 9)..............c.......... 695,674 36,324 731,998 102,263 834,261
AdVertiSINg. .....ocvuiiniiiiiiii e 667 35 702 98 800
OCCUPANCY ...ttt 94,397 4,929 99,326 13,876 113,202
Contribution eXPense...........oveuveuneiuiiuiiiniiiiiiiiniieeeianes 8,653 452 9,105 1,272 10,377
Contracted ServICeS........oviviiriiiii e, 163,359 8,530 171,889 24,014 195,903
Travel and transportation.............c.ccoeeuveiiiiiiininenennn. 8,386 438 8,824 1,233 10,057
SUPPLIES. et 82,989 4,333 87,322 12,199 99,521
Core curriCulum. ......oooe i, 13,040 681 13,721 - 13,721
Telephone and communications.............c..ccoveuveeneinennenn. 13,705 716 14,421 2,015 16,436
Repairs and maintenance................coocoeiiiiiiiii. 130,447 6,811 137,258 19,176 156,434
Equipment............ooooii 4,214 220 4,434 - 4,434
Student meals.........c.ovviiiiiiii e 244,968 12,791 257,759 - 257,759
Depreciation and amortization...................c.coooil, 466,533 24,359 490,892 68,579 559,471
Interest expense, net of subsidized interest (Note 7)............ 1,026,030 53,573 1,079,603 150,825 1,230,428
CONLETEINCES. ...ttt 22,726 1,187 23,913 3,341 27,254
Recruitment. ... 3,084 161 3,245 453 3,698
INSUTANCE. ... vt 45,203 2,360 47,563 6,645 54,208
Bad Debt Expense...........cccoceviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie, - - - - -
MiSCEIIANEOUS. ...t 39,768 2,076 41,844 5,846 47,690
$ 5,288,982 $ 276,158 $ 5,565,140 $ 738,926 $ 6,304,066

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change inNet assets.........c..viuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiee e, $ 1,177,539 983,298
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization..........................o 562,361 559,472
Amortization of bond issuance costS.........c.ovveieiiniininn. 15,925 15,924
Bad debt.....o.oiiiiii 59,189 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accountsreceivable. ... ... 30,508 104,848
Grantsreceivable. ... ..o (88,836) 1,702
Prepaid expenses............coooiiiiiiiiiiii (8,497) 7,513
Deferred revenue................ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii - (57,397)
Interest payable..............cooooii (7,616) (7,276)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses............................. 241,802 (135,942)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,982,375 1,472,142
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of fixed @ssets............cccuveiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiie (1,886,319) (18,752)
Purchase of iINVeStMENtS. ............oouieiiiiiiiniiii e, (109) (149)
CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,886,428) (18,901)
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of capital lease payable.............ccc.ccoviieiiiiiinnin.i. (13,440) (13,440)
Repayment of bonds payable..............cccooviiiiiiiiiiiiii (285,000) (280,000)
CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (298,440) (293,440)
NET CHANGE IN CASH (202,493) 1,159,801
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, beginning of year............ 11,869,411 10,709,610
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, end of year..................... $ 11,666,918 11,869,411
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Financed acquisition of equipment..................ccooooiiiii. $ - 67,295
Cash paid for iNterest .............cooiveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiei e $ 1,434,585 1,469,608
PRESENTATION OF CASH ON THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION:
Cash and cash equivalents............c..ccoeoviiiiiiiiiiiniin, $ 8,974,966 9,182,731
Restricted cash ...........cooooiiiiiii 2,691,952 2,686,680
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year .................c.cooiii. $ 11,666,918 11,869,411

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of significant accounting policies of the Riverhead Charter School, Inc. (hereinafter “the
School”) is presented to assist in understanding the School’s financial statements. These financial
statements and notes are representations of the School’s management, which is responsible for the
integrity and objectivity of the financial statements. These accounting policies conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and have been consistently applied in the
preparation of the financial statements.

Organization: The School is a not-for-profit organization that was incorporated under Article 56 of the
Education Law on February 1, 2001 pursuant to a five-year provisional charter granted by the Education
Department of the State of New York (“NYSED”). The School’s main objective is to offer students a true
choice in public education, which promotes love of learning and local exploration. The School’s goal is
to provide a rigorous community of learning, which is inviting and stimulating to staff and parents, as
well as students. The School intends to reverse the current spiral of student failure and meet or exceed
State and federal standards, to nurture the individual gifts of every student, and to prepare them for a
rewarding community life. Through fiscal 2013, the School was approved to provide education to
children in kindergarten through sixth grade. Effective September 2013, the School received approval to
expand its program to seventh grade, and effective September 2014, to eighth grade. On March 2, 2017,
the School received approval to expand its maximum enrollment to 700 students and will be renovating
its old school and administrative buildings to accommodate the extra classes. The School’s charter has
been renewed by the Education Department of the State of New York through June 30, 2022. In addition,
in March 2018 the Board of Regents approved a request to add a high school which is estimated to be in
operations for fiscal year 2021.

Income Tax Status: The School is exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and is publicly supported, as described in section 509(a). The School is also exempt from
certain State and local taxes. The School evaluated for uncertain tax positions and has determined that
there were no uncertain tax positions for 2018 and 2017. The School files a Form 990 and is exempt from
filing a New York state return. The 990 is subject to review and examination by federal taxing authorities.

Basis of Accounting: The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Revenue is recorded as earned and expenses are recorded when incurred.

Revenue Recognition: The School recognizes revenue on government and private grants when
reimbursable expenditures under qualified programs are expended. Grants are typically fully expended
within a one-year cycle. Tuition income is earned as education is provided to students enrolled at the
School.

Deferred Revenue: The School recognizes, as deferred revenue, any amounts received in advance for the
following year’s tuition. Revenue is recognized at the time services are provided.

Cash Equivalents: For the purposes of the financial statements, cash equivalents represent money market
funds with financial institutions.




RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Advertising: The School uses advertising to promote its program and fundraising events among the
public it serves. The production costs of advertising are expensed as incurred.

Use of Estimates: The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Basis of Presentation: Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board, specifically for not-for-profit organizations. The School is required to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets:
unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.

Unrestricted net assets — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or
will be met, either by action of the School and/or passage of time.

Permanently restricted net assets — Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that must be
maintained permanently by the School. Generally, the donors of these assets would permit the
School to use all or part of the income earned on any related investments for general or specific
purposes. The School had no permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Donated Services: The School benefits from volunteer services in program and administrative duties
from Board members and other volunteers. Even though these donated services are valuable to the
School, and help to advance its mission, no amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for
these contributed services inasmuch as such services do not meet the criteria for recognition in the
financial statements under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, nor
do they create or enhance non-financial assets.

Contributions: Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the School that
is, in substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases
in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are
recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or
permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

Expense Allocation: Directly identifiable expenses are charged to programs and supporting services.
Expenses related to more than one function are allocated to programs and supporting services based
upon management estimates.

Leased Employees: The School has a contract with Extensis Group, LLC. (“Extensis”), a professional
employer organization for leased employees. Extensis provides comprehensive human resource services
to the School and is responsible for personnel, administrative, and benefits management functions, as
well as payroll processing. Since Extensis is the employer of record for all employees assigned to the
School, they are included in the Extensis quarterly Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) Form 941, New York
State Form NYS-45, and statutory New York State disability and workers compensation filings.
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property and Equipment: Property and equipment are stated at original cost. Those assets acquired by
gift are carried at fair market value established at the date of acquisition.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense and betterments are capitalized. Depreciation expense
is computed using the straight-line method over each asset’s estimated useful life as follows:

BUilding......cocuiiiiiiiiiiccc e 25 - 39 years
Building improvements.............cccccoeeeinniiinneiinieces 10 - 25 years
Equipment .........ccccooviiiiiiniiii 3.5 -5 years

Bond Issuance Costs: Bond issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization, are reported as a direct
deduction from the face amount of the bond. Bond issuance costs are amortized on the straight-line basis
over the term of the bond and are included in interest expense in the statements of functional expenses.

Subsequent Events: The School has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between July 1, 2018
and October 15, 2018, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued, for possible
disclosure and recognition in the financial statements.

Reclassifications: Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified to
conform to the current year presentation.

NOTE 2 - INVESTMENTS

Investments are presented in the statements of financial position at fair value. A fair value hierarchy has
been established based upon the observable inputs to the evaluation of an asset or liability as of the
measurement date. The three-level valuation techniques are based upon observable and unobservable
inputs. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable
inputs reflect market assumptions. These two types of inputs create the following fair-value levels (Level
1, 2, and 3):

e Level 1 instruments are valued using observable inputs that reflect quoted prices for identical
assets or liabilities in active markets that the School has the ability to access at the measurement
date. Level 1 assets include highly-liquid U.S. Treasury securities and exchange-traded equity
securities.

e Level 2 instruments are valued using observable inputs, other than quoted prices included in
Level 1, for the asset or liability or prices for similar assets and liabilities. Most debt securities and
some preferred stocks are model-priced by vendors using observable inputs and are classified
within Level 2. Also included in the Level 2 category are derivative instruments that are priced
using models with observable market inputs, including interest rates, foreign currency, and
certain credit swap contracts.

o Level 3 instruments are valued using valuations that are derived from techniques in which one
or more of the significant inputs, are unobservable (including assumptions about risk). Level 3
securities include less liquid securities such as highly structured and/or lower quality, asset-
backed securities (“ABS”) and commercial mortgage-backed securities (“CMBS”), including ABS
backed by sub-prime loans, and private placement debt and equity securities. Because Level 3
fair values, by their nature, contain unobservable market inputs, as there is no observable market
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2 - INVESTMENTS (continued)

for these assets and liabilities, considerable judgment is used to determine the Level 3 fair values.
Level 3 fair values represent the School’s best estimate of an amount that could be realized in a
current market exchange absent actual market exchanges.

All of the investments held by the School are in certificates of deposit which are considered Level 2
investments because they are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets.

NOTE 3 - CONCENTRATIONS AND COMMITMENTS

From time to time, the School has cash on deposit with a financial institution in excess of Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation-insured limits. This includes both operating cash and restricted cash.

Restricted cash consisted of the following as of June 30,:

2018 2017
Debt service reserve fund (Note 7) .................. $ 2,011,685 $ 2,007,501
Excess bond funds (Note 7).......ccccccveevrennnee. 504,689 503,639
Charter dissolution account (Note 6)............... 75,578 75,540
Repair and Replacement fund (Note 7)........... 100,000 100,000
Total Restricted cash ....cc.coveeeveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen, $ 2,691,952 $ 2,686,680

During fiscal 2018, approximately 92% of the School’s total support and revenue was comprised of tuition
income from several Eastern Suffolk County school districts, the largest of which were: Riverhead
Central School District (62%), William Floyd School District (14%), Longwood Central School District
(14%), South Country Central School District (5%), and other school districts (5%). The remaining 8%
was primarily comprised of revenue related to the School’s Student Meal Program (3%), grants from the
Education Department of the State of New York (4%), and other income (1%).

During fiscal 2017, approximately 92% of the School’s total support and revenue was comprised of tuition
income from several Eastern Suffolk County school districts, the largest of which were: Riverhead
Central School District (60%), William Floyd School District (17%), Longwood Central School District
(12%), South Country Central School District (5%), and other school districts (6%). The remaining 8%
was primarily comprised of revenue related to the School’s Student Meal Program (4%), grants from the
Education Department of the State of New York (3%), and other income (1%).

Effective July 1, 2008, the School entered into a collective bargaining agreement with its teachers and
teacher assistants through the Teachers’ Association. The agreement, which expired on June 30, 2009,
provided for merit-based increases for teachers and teachers” assistants of 3% for fiscal 2009. On July 9,
2013 the School entered into a new collective bargaining agreement which expired on June 30, 2014. As
of the date of this report the School has not entered into a new collective bargaining agreement with the
Teachers Association.
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30:

2018 2017
7 o e RO $ 794,457 $ 794,457
BUIlAiNg ...eveeeieiieccc e 17,432,111 17,432,111
Building improvements...........c.cccovveecnneccnneccrenenene. 1,160,012 1,137,312
Equipment.........cccocccoiiiiiiiiniiiiicccc 478,095 444 830
TOLAL COSE e e e e e e e e s eaeeeeean 19,864,675 19,808,710
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization............ ( 3,774,170) ( 3,211,809)
Net property and equipment............cccccceviviiinnnnnnnnne. 16,090,505 16,596,901
Construction in Progress...........cccevvveveurieninreeninineecnseenenen. 1,830,354 -
0] 7= E TR $ 17,920,859 $ 16,596,901

During fiscal year 2018, the School commenced construction of its middle school and administration
buildings. As of June 30, 2018, these building have not been put into service therefore no depreciation
expense has been recorded.

NOTE 5 - ACCOUNTS AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consisted of the following as of June 30,:

2018 2017
Tuition receivable from school districts.......... $ 40,414 $ 129,044
NYSED ..ot 22,172 18,060
Subsidized interest receivable .......cccocveeeeunen... 91,886 95,748
OBOT e e e e - 1,317
Total accounts receivable............cccovevveereeneennnn. $ 154,472 $ 244,169

Furthermore, grants receivable of $177,638 and $88,802 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, were due
from various school districts for reimbursable expenses incurred before year-end.

The School uses the allowance method to determine uncollectible accounts and grants receivable. The
allowance for doubtful accounts is based primarily on the School’s collection efforts and management’s
analysis of specific outstanding balances. The School does not impose interest or finance charges on
overdue receivable balances. Collectability is assessed on an individual account basis, and uncollectible
accounts are written off against the allowance after approval by the School Board. As of June 30, 2018
and 2017, no allowance has been recorded.

NOTE 6 - GRANTOR RESTRICTIONS

Financial awards from governmental entities in the form of grants are subject to special audit. Such
audits could result in claims against the School for disallowed costs or noncompliance with grantor
restrictions. No provision has been made for any liabilities that may arise from such audits since the
amounts, if any, cannot be determined at this date.

NYSED requires all charter schools to maintain $75,000 in a separate account to cover the cost of a
potential closure should the School’s charter not be renewed. This amount has to be maintained even
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 6 - GRANTOR RESTRICTIONS (continued)

when the Charter is renewed and has accordingly been included, along with accumulated interest, in
restricted cash on the School’s statements of financial position at June 30, 2018 and 2017.

NOTE 7 - BONDS PAYABLE

On August 22, 2013, the School issued education revenue bonds through the Riverhead IDA Economic
Job Development Corporation in the amount of $21,105,000 to fund the construction of a 50,000 square
foot two-story building and related infrastructure to be used as a school building to replace modular
buildings located on the School’s six-acre campus.

The bonds are comprised of $16,105,000 of Series A tax-exempt bonds (“Series A Bonds”) with maturities
ranging from August 1, 2015 through August 1, 2048, bearing interest between 3% and 7.04% and
$5,000,000 of Series B federally taxable qualified school construction bonds (“Series B Bonds”) that bear
interest at 7.65% and mature on August 1, 2034. Interest on the bonds are payable semi-annually on
February 1st and August 1st of each year, commencing February 1, 2014. In addition, the School is
required to meet certain financial and reporting covenants.

Pursuant to the bond agreement, the proceeds of the loan were utilized as follows:

Series A Series B
Tax-Exempt Taxable Total

Financing building construction................... $ 9200000 $ 4,900,000 $ 14,100,000
Repayment of Edison Debit................c........... 3,195,164 - 3,195,164
Debt service reserve fund........cceceeeveeeeennn.. 1,502,925 500,000 2,002,925
Fund Capital interest through

February 15, 2015........ccccocevviiinnicinns 1,545,978 - 1,545,978
Original Issue Discount ............ccccccceeuiunnnnnn. 182,411 - 182,411
Issuance Costs .......coeevvireeieeeciieeiieeeeeeeee e 627,630 145,492 773,122
Total ..o 16,254,108 5,545,492 21,799,600
Paid directly by the School............................ ( 149,108) ( 545492) ( 694,600)
Funded through bond issuance.................... $ 16,105,000 $ 5,000,000 $ 21,105,000

Any excess bond funds at the completion of the projects will be used for the early retirement of debt as
determined by the Trustee. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, there were $504,689 and $503,639 of excess
bond funds available, respectively.

The bonds are secured by all of the assets of the School and provide for a lien on gross revenue, a
mortgage on the property, and a guarantee by the School. The debt service reserve fund outlined above,
must be maintained by the School with the Custodian until all obligations have been repaid. The Series
B Bonds provide for direct interest subsidy payments from the US Treasury at the lesser of the tax credit
rate at the time of issuance or the 7.65% issuance rate. The bond provides for interest only payments
until 2016, at which time the principal will be repaid over the life of the bond based upon specific
payment amounts as outlined in the bond agreement.
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 7 - BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

The bond retirements pursuant to the bond agreement are as follows for the years ending June 30:

2079t s $ 295,000
2020t s 305,000
2021 315,000
2022t e 325,000
2023 s 335,000
Thereafter ... 18,695,000
Total before debt issuance costs...........ccceuu...... $ 20,270,000
Less: unamortized debt issuance costs............ ( 462,843)
Total ..o $ 19,807,157

The School can redeem the Series A Bonds at any time subsequent to August 1, 2023 without penalty.
The maturities of the outstanding debt at that time are $1,630,000 at August 1, 2033, $7,295,000 at August
1, 2043, and $6,330,000 at August 1, 2048. Early redemption of the Series B Bonds can occur subsequent
to August 1, 2018 at a premium commencing at 103.5% at August 1, 2018, decreasing to no premium at
August 1, 2023. The School must maintain certain financial ratios pursuant to the bond agreement.

Interest expense incurred for the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 on the Series 2013 Bonds totaled
$1,438,276 and $1,461,055, respectively. As of June 30, 2018, the School reported interest earned on
unspent bond proceeds and Federal Subsidy interest income of $1,049 and $221,299, respectively. As of
June 30, 2017, the School reported interest earned on unspent bond proceeds and Federal Subsidy interest
income of $657 and $230,627, respectively. Federal Subsidy interest was offset against interest expense
on the statements of functional expenses as of June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Additionally, the IDA requires the School to maintain a Repair and Replacement Fund of $100,000 in a
separate account for as long as the bonds are outstanding. The Repair and Replacement Fund will only
be used to pay capital related expenses incurred for maintenance and betterment of the project.
Withdrawals from the fund require approval of the Trustee and must meet certain criteria as outlined in
the loan agreement. As of June 30, 2018, and 2017 no funds had been drawn against this fund.

NOTE 8 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

The School’s temporarily restricted net assets as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 are for the purpose of funding
the National School Lunch Program in the amount of $111,231 and $97,089, respectively.

NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLANS

The School participates in the New York State Teachers” Retirement System (TRS) and New York State
and Local Employees” Retirement System (ERS) (the Systems), which are cost-sharing multiply employer
public employee retirement systems. The Systems offer a wide range of plans and benefits which are
related to years of service and final average salary, as well as vesting of retirement, death and disability
benefits. TRS is administered by the New York State Teachers” Retirement Board and provides benefits
to plan members and beneficiaries as authorized by the Education Law and the Retirement and Social
Security Law of the State of New York. TRS issues a publicly available financial report that contains
financial statements and required supplementary information. ERS provides retirement benefits as well
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)

as death and disability benefits. New York State Retirement and Social Security Law governs obligations
of employers and employees to contribute and provide benefits to employees.

No employee contribution is required for those whose service began prior to July 1976. The Systems
require employee contributions of 3% of salary for the first 10 years of service for those employees who
joined the System from July 1976 through December 2009. Participants whose service began on or after
January 1, 2010 through March 31, 2012 are required to contribute 3% (ERS) or 3.5% (TRS) of
compensation throughout their active membership in the Systems. Participants whose service began on
or after April 1, 2012 are required to contribute a percentage ranging from 3% to 6% each year, based on
their level of compensation.

For ERS, the Comptroller annually certifies the rates used, expressed as a percentage of the wages of
participants, to compute the contributions required to be made by the School to the pension accumulation
fund. The contribution rates for ERS vary depending on the participant’s tier. The ERS average
contribution rate was 15.3% and 15.5% as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. For the years ended
June 30, 2018 and 2017, required contributions for ERS were $20,414 and $29,699, respectively.

Pursuant to Article 11 of the Education Law, rates are established annually for TRS by the New York
State Teachers” Retirement Board at an actuarially determined rate. The rate is 9.80% and 11.72% of the
annual covered payroll as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. For the years ended June 30, 2018 and
2017, the required contributions for TRS totaled $280,679 and $256,905, respectively.

NOTE 10 - LITIGATION

From time to time the School is subject to certain claims or litigation in the normal course of its operations.
During the year ended June 30, 2018 the six claims outstanding as of June 30, 2017 were closed and an
additional two claims were commenced against the School. As the claims were filed during fiscal 2018,
the lawyers, handling these cases are not able to make an assessment as to their potential outcomes. These
matters have been assigned to the School’s insurer. The School’s Management is of the opinion that the
claims are either without merit or that the present insurance coverage will be sufficient to meet the
financial obligations, if any, arising out of such claims or litigation.
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Report On Internal Control over Financial Reporting and On
Compliance and Other Matters Based On an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed In Accordance
With Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
Riverhead Charter School, Inc.
3685 Middle Country Road
Calverton, New York 11933

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Riverhead Charter
School, Inc. (hereinafter “the School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2018, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 15,
2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the School’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance,
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Bohemia, New York
October 15, 2018

-18 -



RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Section I - Findings of Financial Statement Audit

There were no findings and questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2018.
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Section II - Prior Audit Findings of Financial Statement Audit

There were no findings and questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2017.
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ANYSED_ , Annual Financial Statement Audit Report

School Name: Riverhead Charter School
Date (Report is due Nov. 1): November 1, 2018
Primary District of Location Riverhead Central School District

(If NYC select NYC DOE):

If located in NYC DOE select CSD: -

School Fiscal Contact Name: Raymond Ankrum

School Fiscal Contact Email:

School Fiscal Contact Phone:

School Audit Firm Name: Cerini & Associates, LLP

School Audit Contact Name: Ken Cerini

School Audit Contact Email:

School Audit Contact Phone:

Audit Period: 2017-18

Prior Year: 2016-17

The following items are required to be included:

1.) The independent auditor’s report on financial statements and notes.

2.) Excel template file containing the Financial Position, Statement of Activities, Cash Flow and Functional
Expenses worksheets.

3.) Reports on internal controls over financial reporting and on compliance.

The additional items listed below should be included if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the items are
not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school did not expend
federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the management letter response will be
submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the report); etc.

Item If not included, state the reason(s) below (if not applicable fill in N/A):
Management Letter N/A
Management Letter Response N/A
Federal Single Audit (A-133) N/A
Corrective Action Plan N/A







Riverhead Charter School
Statement of Financial Position

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Grants and contracts receivable
Accounts receivables
Prepaid Expenses
Contributions and other receivables
Other current assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Building and Equipment, net
Restricted Cash
Security Deposits
Other Non-Current Assets
TOTAL NON-CURRENT

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits
Current Portion of Loan Payable
Due to Related Parties
Refundable Advances
Deferred Revenue
Other Current Liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year
Deferred Rent
Due to Related Party
Other Long-Term Liabilities
TOTAL LONG-TERM

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

as of June 30

2018 2017
8,974,966 $ 9,182,731
177,638 88,802
154,472 244,169
21,093 12,596
59,966 59,857
9,388,135 9,588,155
17,920,859 $ 16,596,901
2,691,952 2,686,680
20,612,811 19,283,581
30,000,946 28,871,736
125,919 $ 19,618
872,813 737,312
283,857 273,857
607,356 614,972
1,889,945 1,645,759
19,523,300 $ 19,802,375
17,920 31,360
19,541,220 19,833,735
21,431,165 21,479,494
8,458,550 $ 7,295,153



Temporarily restricted 111,231 97,089
Permanently restricted - -
TOTAL NET ASSETS 8,569,781 7,392,242

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 30,000,946 28,871,736




Riverhead Charter School
Statement of Activities
as of June 30

2018 2017
Unrestricted Temporarily Total Total
Restricted

OPERATING REVENUE

State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed $ 8,036,929 $ -3 8,036,929 6,561,553

State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED 121,111 - 121,111 173,016

State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue - - - -

Federal Grants 392,559 - 392,559 240,318

State and City Grants - - - -

Other Operating Income 22,021 - 22,021 14,833

Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 28,465 281,634 310,099 255,216
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 8,601,085 281,634 8,882,719 7,244,936
EXPENSES

Program Services

Regular Education $ 6,499,169 $ - $ 6,499,169 5,288,982

Special Education 210,271 - 210,271 276,158

Other Programs - 267,492 267,492 -

Total Program Services 6,709,440 267,492 6,976,932 5,565,140

Management and general 768,415 - 768,415 738,926
Fundraising - - - -
TOTAL EXPENSES 7,477,855 267,492 7,745,347 6,304,066
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS 1,123,230 14,142 1,137,372 940,870
SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE

Interest and Other Income $ 20,558 $ - $ 20,558 18,056

Contributions and Grants - - - -

Fundraising Support 19,609 - 19,609 24,239

Investments - - - -

Donated Services - - - -

Other Support and Revenue - - - 133
TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 40,167 40,167 42,428
Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on Disposal $ - $ - % - =
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,163,397 14,142 1,177,539 983,298
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 7,295,153 $ 97,089 $ 7,392,242 6,408,944

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS



NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 8,458,550 $ 111,231 § 8,569,781 $ 7,392,242




Riverhead Charter School
Statement of Cash Flows

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Revenues from School Districts
Accounts Receivable
Due from School Districts
Depreciation
Grants Receivable
Due from NYS
Grant revenues
Prepaid Expenses
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Accrued Liabilities
Contributions and fund-raising activities
Miscellaneous sources
Deferred Revenue
Interest payments
Other
Other

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of equipment
Other
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on long-term debt
Other
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

as of June 30

2018 2017
1,177,539  § 983,298
30,508 104,848
562,361 559,472
(88,836) 1,702
(8,497) 7,513
241,802 (135,942)
- (57,397)
(7,616) (7,276)
15,925 15,924
59,189 -
1,982,375 $ 1,472,142
$
(1,886,319) (18,752)
(109) (149)
(1,886,428) $ (18,901)
$
(285,000) (280,000)
(13,440) (13,440)
(298,440) $ (293,440)
(202,493) $ 1,159,801
11,869,411 10,709,610
11,666,918 $ 11,869,411




Personnel Services Costs
Administrative Staff Personnel
Instructional Personnel
Non-Instructional Personnel

Total Salaries and Staff

Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes

Retirement

Management Company Fees

Legal Service

Accounting / Audit Services

Other Purchased / Professional /

Consulting Services

Building and Land Rent / Lease

Repairs & Maintenance

Insurance

Utilities

Supplies / Materials

Equipment / Furnishings

Staff Development

Marketing / Recruitment

Technology

Food Service

Student Services

Office Expense

Depreciation

OTHER

Total Expenses

No. of
Positions

16.00
57.00

3.00
76.00

Riverhead Charter School
Statement of Functional Expenses
as of June 30

2018

Program Services

Supporting Services

$

Regular
Education

$

253,290
2,846,511
66,405
3,166,206
648,416
280,679

16,272
50,035
127,286

187,806
49,661
112,043
104,965
7,983
32,632
1,466
12,904
259,109
40,301
37,398
508,945

1,114,271

6,758,278 $

Special Other Total Fundraising Management Total
Education Education and General
$ $ $ $
8,195 261,485 - 391,390 391,390
92,095 2,938,606 - - -
2,148 68,553 - 8,384 8,384
102,438 3,268,644 - 399,774 399,774
30,060 678,476 - 96,896 96,896
- 280,679 - 20,414 20,414
767 17,039 - 2,084 2,084
2,358 52,393 - 6,410 6,410
3,138 130,424 - 15,950 15,950
6,076 193,882 - 13,635 13,635
1,607 51,268 - 3,605 3,605
3,625 115,668 - 8,134 8,134
3,396 108,361 - 13,253 13,253
258 8,241 - 580 580
1,053 33,585 - 4,107 4,107
47 1,513 - 185 185
417 13,321 - 937 937
8,383 267,492 - - -
1,304 41,605 - - -
1,210 38,608 - 4,722 4,722
16,466 525,411 - 36,950 36,950
36,051 1,150,322 - 140,779 140,779
218,654 $ 6,976,932 $ - $ 768,415 $ 768,415




2017

Total
$

652,875 619,677
2,938,606 1,967,635
76,937 81,100
3,668,418 2,668,412
775,372 547,656
301,093 286,605
19,123 26,880
58,803 58,934
146,374 110,089
207,517 156,434
54,873 54,208
123,802 113,202
121,614 99,521
8,821 4,434
37,692 27,254
1,698 4,498
14,258 16,436
267,492 257,759
41,605 13,721
43,330 10,377
562,361 559,471
1,291,101 1,288,175
7,745,347 $ 6,304,066




ﬁ Entry 5c¢ Additional Financial Docs

Last updated: 10/29/2018

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the
items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the corrective action
plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the

report); etc.

Section Heading

1. Management Letter

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading
the Management Letter.

2. Form 990

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading
the Form 990.

3. Federal Single Audit

N/A.. no findings

Auditors did not complete as yet... still working on it.

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please refer
to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements.

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading
the Federal Single Audit.

N/A

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading

the procedure report.

N/A

1/2



5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading N/A

the Escrow evidence.

6. Corrective Action Plan

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which must
include:

a. The person responsible

b. The date action was taken, or will be taken
c. Description of the action taken

d. Evidence of implementation (if available)

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading N/A

the Corrective Action Plan.

2/2
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Entry 5d Financial Services Contact Information

Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter the financial contact information
requested and upload the independent auditor's report and internal controls reports as one combined

file.

RIVERHEAD CS (REGENTS)Section Heading

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information

School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact
Name Email Phone

Raymond Ankrum

2. Audit Firm Contact Information

School Audit Contact  School Audit Contact School Audit Contact Years Working With
Name Email Phone This Audit Firm

Ken Cerini

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced

financial services firm.

Firm Name Contact Mailing Email Phone Years with
Person Address Firm

1/1



New York State Education Department

Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the -
Board of Regents -

2018-19 Budget & Cash Flow Template

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates

1

Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE

Enter information into the GRAY cells

Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on
that particular item

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate
additional districts if necessary.

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would
reference the applicable page number in Section |, C of the application narrative.




Riverhead Charter School
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019
July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019

Please Note: The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This Wi populate the data in row 10.

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL —
Total Revenue 9,854,971 164,280 - - - 10,019,251
Total Expenses 9,981,814 - - - - 9,981,814
Net Income (126,843) 164,280 - - - 37,437
Actual Student Enroliment 545 14 -
Total Paid Student Enrollment - S
PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES
REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL
REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES
Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate
Riverhead Central School District $17,076.00 4,986,192 63,900 - - - 5,050,092
William Floyd Ufsd $15,169.00 1,152,844 7,254 - - - 1,160,098
Longwood Csd $15,380.00 1,091,980 41,046 - - - 1,133,026
South Country Csd $16,951.00 372,922 25,775 - - - 398,697
Other Districts $16,509.00 1,393,467 26,305 - - - 1,419,772
8,997,405 164,280 9,161,685
Special Education Revenue | = | 2 | = | 2 | 3 | =
Grants
Stimulus - - - - - -
Other - - - - - -
Other State Revenue = = = = = =
TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 8,997,405 164,280 9,161,685
REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs - - - - - -
Title | 110,068 - - - - 110,068
Title Funding - Other 70,000 - - - - 70,000
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 325,000 - - - - 325,000
Grants
Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation - - - - - -
Other 35,240 - - - - 35,240

Other Federal Revenue - - = = 5 -
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 540,308 540,308

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 30,360 - - - - 30,360
Erate Reimbursement 6,072 - - - - 6,072
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 29,850 - - - - 29,850

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) - - - = 5 -
Food Service (Income from meals) - - = = > -

Text Book - - = S 5 -
Other Local Revenue 250,976 - - - - 250,976
TOTAL REVENUE 9,854,971 164,280 10,019,251
EXPENSES
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions
Executive Management 1.00 190,000 = = - - 190,000
Instructional Management 2.00 189,000 - - - - 189,000
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 4.00 303,500 - - - - 303,500
CFO / Director of Finance 1.00 108,000 - - - - 108,000
Operation / Business Manager 1.00 52,000 - - - - 52,000




Riverhead Charter School

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019

Please Note: The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This Wi populate the data in row 10.

Total Revenue

Total Expenses

Net Income

Actual Student Enroliment
Total Paid Student Enrollment

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &

EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL —
9,854,971 164,280 - 10,019,251
9,981,814 - - 9,981,814

(126,843) 164,280 - 37,437
545 14 -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES
REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &
EDUCATION EDUCATION FUNDRAISING GENERAL

Administrative Staff 252,715 - 252,715
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 1,095,215 1,095,215
INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS

Teachers - Regular 30.00 1,705,109 - - 1,705,109

Teachers - SPED = = o = =

Substitute Teachers 2.00 78,792 - - 78,792

Teaching Assistants = = - - -

Specialty Teachers 25.00 1,389,645 - - 1,389,645

Aides 3.00 150,451 - - 150,451

Therapists & Counselors 1.00 70,000 - - 70,000

Other = = = =

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS

Nurse = - - -
Librarian = - - -
Custodian 3.00 127,000 - - 127,000
Security - - - - -
Other 1.00 27,051 - - 27,051
PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes 447,621 - - 447,621
Fringe / Employee Benefits 573,313 - - 573,313
Retirement / Pension 561,500 - - 561,500
CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 77,000 - - 77,000
Legal 59,840 - - 59,840
Management Company Fee - - - -
Nurse Services = = - -
Food Service / School Lunch 296,899 = - 296,899
Payroll Services = = - -
Special Ed Services = - - -
Titlement Services (i.e. Title 1) = = - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 147,218 - - 147,218

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials
Special Ed Supplies & Materials
Textbooks / Workbooks

580,957 580,957

19,189 2 3 19,189
61,740 2 o 61,740
66,630 - - 66,630




Riverhead Charter School

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019

Please Note: The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This Wi populate the data in row 10.

Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income
Actual Student Enroliment
Total Paid Student Enrollment

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &

EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL —
9,854,971 164,280 - - 10,019,251
9,981,814 - - - 9,981,814

(126,843) 164,280 - - 37,437
545 14 -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES
REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &
EDUCATION EDUCATION FUNDRAISING GENERAL
Supplies & Materials other 9,751 - - - 9,751
Equipment / Furniture 5,224 - - - 5,224
Telephone 37,420 - - - 37,420
Technology 86,176 = - - 86,176
Student Testing & Assessment = = = - -
Field Trips 15,680 - - - 15,680
Transportation (student) = = = = -
Student Services - other 1,238 - - - 1,238
Office Expense 12,682 - - - 12,682
Staff Development 29,412 - - - 29,412
Staff Recruitment 4,125 - - - 4,125
Student Recruitment / Marketing = o = = -
School Meals / Lunch = o = = =
Travel (Staff) 15,200 - - - 15,200
Fundraising 13,125 - - - 13,125
Other 32,968 - - - 32,968
TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS
FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance 140,172 - - - 140,172
Janitorial 28,924 - - - 28,924
Building and Land Rent / Lease 1,415,756 - - - 1,415,756
Repairs & Maintenance 284,221 - - - 284,221
Equipment / Furniture - - - - -
Security = - = - -
Utilities 247,827 - - - 247,827

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY

2,116,900

2,116,900

647,700

647,700

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*

Riverhead Central School District
William Floyd Ufsd
Longwood Csd
South Country Csd
Other Districts
TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

9,981,814

9,981,814

REGULAR SPECIAL TOTAL
EDUCATION EDUCATION ENROLLED
292 6 298
76 1 77
71 3 74
22 2 24
84 2 86




Assumptions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note pti when applicabl

assume rollover student enrollment at blended per pupil rate

assume rollover student enrollment at blended per pupil rate

assume rollover student enrollment at blended per pupil rate

assume rollover student enrollment at blended per pupil rate

assume all other districts at $16,509 blended rate

decrease due to projected enrollment of students with IEP

assume 20% increase

budgeted flat

qualified for CEP program, all students will receive free breakfast and lunch

increase in allocation from NYSED

budgeted flat

budgeted flat

assume .6 interest

Federal Subsidy QSCB interest

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent)

promotion to Superintendent

1 Elementary principal $7,500 increase and hired 1 Middle School Principal

2 DCI's, Dean of Students and Special Education Coordinator/Assesment Coordinator

$7,500 increase

assume 2% increase




Assumptions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note

when

PP

3 Admin Asst, School Meal Coordinator, Accts Payable Rep; assume 2% increase

Hired 6 new employees and assume 2% increase

none, we have 1 ICT classroom in every grade level
assume no change
none

Hired 7 new employees and assume 2% increase

Hired 2 new employees and assume 2% increase

assume 2% increase

none

none

none

Hired 2 new employees and assume 2% increase

none

non-instructional aide, assume no change

based on FICA/medicare 8% increase and 12% increase SUI

assume 10% increase for medical benefits and workers comp

assume 8% increase ERS and 13% increase TRS

assume 10% increase

decrease 20% as per trend

none

none

assume 10% increase

none

none

none

assume 10% increase

assume 5% increase

assume fluctuation due to opening of 2nd building - 80% increase

none

assume fluctuation due to opening of 2nd building - 50% increase




Assumptions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note

when

PP

assume fluctuation due to opening of 2nd building - 100% increase

assume fluctuation due to opening of 2nd building - 100% increase

assume 15% increase

assume 25% increase

none

assume $5,000 for 2nd bldg and 20% increase

none

assume 10% increase

assume 15% increase (10% increase in enrollment)

assume 50% increase due to increase in teachers

assume 10% increase

none

none

assume 10% increase

assume 5% increase

assume 20% increase

assume 20% increase due to additional 10% enroliment and usage of 2nd building

$8,500 for 2nd building and 10% increase

from amortization schedule

assume 50% increase ( review history of expenses and assume increase)

none

none

assume 50% increase due to usage of 2nd building (review history of expenses)

assume 2% increase




Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
Education Corporation Trustee

Trustee Name:

Natasha Jeffries

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is
the Charter School Name):

Riverhead Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer,

parent representative)-Tru stee

2. |s the trustee employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation?
Yes x No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation?

Yes No
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Financial | Steps taken to avoid Name of person
Interest/Transaction | a conflict of interest, holding interest or
(e.g., did not vote, engaging in
did not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
yourself




No+e

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership,
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write

None.

Organization Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee and/or
conducting business value of the | immediate family member Steps Taken
business with | conducted business of household holding an to Avoid
the school(s) conducted | interest in the organization Condli
. : . onflict of
conducting business with Interest
the school(s) and the
nature of the interest
None

Plgfise note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. Personal contact information

provided belo

Business T
Business A
E-mail Add
Home Tele

Home Addr
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
Education Corporation Trustee

Trustee Name:

ISy / ‘.‘."/,/:’3 Sl X

{

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is
the Charter School Name):

_,2;\' ¥ o o ’v;"_b .,,7, 77 .;_/‘; & “f’"”,’_,-,,”-,__,n v , “/"‘_} .
. N s B LA { Y

1. List all positions held on the education corporatlon board (e.g., president, treasurer,
parent representative).

S

g A P 2
Sl " (S ST

2. Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation?
Yes _/ No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation?

Yes .~ No
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

4. ldentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc.

Norve

Date(s)

Nature of Financial
Interest/Transaction

Steps taken to avoid
a conflict of interest,
(e.g., did not vote,
did not participate in
discussion)

Name of person
holding interest or
engaging in
transaction and
relationship to
yourself




Norve. ‘

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership,
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write

None.
Organization Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee and/or
conducting business value of the | immediate family member Stebs Taken
business with conducted business of household holding an P .
. . e to Avoid
the school(s) conducted interest in the organization .
: . - Conflict of
conducting business with Interest
the school(s) and the
nature of the interest
!. \( A -
. 2 . /.- /W,ﬂ ‘\."- r" m_____,_“_._:_‘__.._— - = R
[/ /PAI' j'1-"--«1:_"“7'(N/ l//ﬁ'-—.-.u""'z:-?-"-_ — '”\"/__ 3 ""/.’jg
v Signature {0 Date

i 0

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. Personal contact information
provided below will b

Business Teleph
Business Addre
E-mail Address:

Home Telephone:

Home Address:




Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
Education Corporation Trustee

Trustee Name:

David Edwards

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is
the Charter School Name):

The Riverhead Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer,
parent representative).

2. Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation?
Yes X _No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation?

Yes X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Financial | Steps taken to avoid Name of person
Interest/Transaction | a conflict of interest, holding interest or
(e.g., did not vote, engaging in
did not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
yourself




none |

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership,
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write

None.
Organization Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee and/or
conducting business value of the | immediate family member Steps Taken
business with | conducted business of household holding an top Avoid
the school(s) conducted | interest in the organization Conflict of
conducting business with Interest
the school(s) and the
nature of the interest
ot leave this space blan
[ [ Y
David Edwards 8/5/18
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. Personal contact information
provided below wg

Business Tel
Business Ad
E-mail Addre
Home Teleph

Home Addre



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
Education Corporation Trustee

Trustee Name:

!
\_Z/L.\f), M/ /’g jcj ES 2 i i
’ /

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is
the Charter School Name):

Wrwertieac! (Cfranitic Mo lonl

parent representative). |, 2124 A b, T reedteses
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2. Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation?
Yes ‘A.I]o

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer,

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation?

Yes .~ No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Financial | Steps taken to avoid Name of person
Interest/Transaction | a conflict of interest, holding interest or
{e.g., did not vote, engaging in
did not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to
yourself




Dome

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership,
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship
between such organization and the schooi(s). If there was no financial interest, write

None.
Organization Nature of | Approximate Name of Trustee and/or
conducting business value of the immediate family member Steps Taken
business with | conducted business of household holding an ps 'a
. - o1 e to Avoid
the school(s) conducted interest in the organization Conflict of
conducting business with Interest
the school(s) and the
nature of the interest
VYOG
% fritd g /Q?j 1{_ s {I..;'-/_/‘;’_,f»;;__,- 82/, / / \;, .

Date

Sighature '

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. Personal contact information
provided below will be redacted.

Business Telephone:

Business Address:
E-mail Addr
Home Telep

Home Addr
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Entry 8 BOT Table

Created: 08/02/2018 -« Last updated: 08/06/2018
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1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member)

Trustee
Name
and
Email
Address

Zenobia

Aimee
Lomonac

N
lo

Natasha
effries
3
David
Edwards
4

Harry
Histand

| -

Susan

()]

Position
on the
Board

Chair

Vice
Chair

Trustee/M
ember

Trustee/M
ember

Treasurer

Secretary

Committ
ee
Affiliation
s

Legal
Represen
tative

Health
Represen
tative

Academic
Represen
tative

Academic
Represen
tative

Business
Represen
tative

Communi
ty
Represen
tative

Voting

Member

Per By-
Laws
(Y/N)

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

2/3

Number
of Terms
Served

Start
Date of
Current
Term
(MM/DD/Y
YYY)

07/01/20
16

07/01/20
14

07/01/20
17

07/01/20
17

07/01/20
16

07/01/20
16

End Date
of
Current
Term
(MM/DD/Y
YYY)

06/30/20
19

06/30/20
17

06/30/20
20

06/30/20
20

06/30/20
19

06/30/20
19

Board
Meetings
Attended
During
2017-18

11

11

12

12

10



la. Are there more that 9
members of the Board of

Trustees?

2. Total number of members on
June 30, 2018

3. Total number of members
joining the Board during the
2017-18 school year

4. Total number of members
departing the Board during the
2017-18 school year

5. Number of voting members in
2017-18, as set by the by-laws,

resolution or minutes

6. Number of Board meetings
conducted during the 2017-18

School Year

7. Number of Board meetings
scheduled for the coming 2018-
19 school year

Thank you.

No

12

12

3/3



ﬁ Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes

Last updated: 08/14/2018

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting
minutes from July 2017--June 2018, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2017-18
school year.

RIVERHEAD CS (REGENTS)

Are all monthly BOT meeting No
minutes posted, which should

match the number of meetings

held during 2017-18 school year,

on the charter school's website?

the charter school's website.

B. Upload all monthly Board meeting minutes, which should match the number of
meetings held during the 2017-18 school year.

Combine all monthly meeting minutes into one .PDF file.

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/resp/18147237/wNFCVDEEJA/

1/1


https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/resp/18147237/wNFCVDEEJA/

Riverhead Charter School Board of Trustees
Minutes

July 2017 Board Meeting

Date and Time
Wednesday July 12, 2017 at 6:30 PM

RCS Mission Statement

Our mission is to inspire today’s learners to become tomorrow’s leaders by setting high
academic standards, promoting solution-orientated thinking, and embracing the
cultural diversity of our community.

Trustees Present
Aimee Lomonaco, David Edwards, Harry Histand, Natasha jeffries, Susan Heinz,
Zencbia Hartfield

Trustees Absent
None

Trustees Arrived Late
David Edwards

Guests Present
Deana Fortunato, Fabiola Colas Williams, Jennifer Borst, Kaitlyn Kosiorowski, Laura
Arcuri, Nicola Graham, Raymond Ankrurm, Shannon Ruffrer

I. Opening ltems
A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order
Zenobia Hartfield calied a meeting of the board of trustees of Riverhead Charter
School Board of Trustees to order on Wednesday Jul 12, 2017 @ 6:40 PM.
The Riverhead Charter School board meeting began with the pledge of
allegiance,

C. Approve Minutes
David Edwards arrived iate.
Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to approve minutes from the Board Meeting on
05-25-17.
Natasha Jeffries seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion,



1. Academic Excellence

A. Executive Directors Report
Mr. Ankrum asked what the role of a trustee is. A trustee is the governing body of
the school and are responsible for the fiscal viability of the school, they are not
responsible for the day to day operations of the school. Mr. Ankrum had concerns
regarding board members coming into the school unscheduled during the day to
speak with RCS employees, If board members wish to speak with administralion
they must schedule a meeting via email and "cc" Ms. Hartfield, board members
are not permitted to come into the school during the day and interrupt ones day.
Mr. Histand was advised by Ms, Hartfield that he is to contact Kaitlyn requesting
information to be collected for a work-session. All board members must be aware
of all the same information.
Mr. Ankrum discussed the 2016-2017 charter school conference in Washington
DC. Mr. Ankrum had the privileged of presenting at the conference about social
economical status and aligning peoples thinking and interactions with students
and the interactions with families, atlowing the barriers to be broken down to
help parents get more invalved and buiid relationships with the school,
As far as RCS goes plans to go on more home visits to show parents that the
school cares and is here to support them. RCS is in contact with an organization
OLA of Eastern Long Island to come in a help Latino parents.
Mrs. Arcuri, Ms. Ruffnier, Mrs. Borst and Mrs. Fortunato gave a presentation on the
NWEA statistics and plans for next year, Currently NWEA tasting is done 4x a
year starting next year NWEA testing will be 3x a year. This data is used to gauge
our students with students of the same age across the nation. This testing helps
students familiarize themselves with computers. Based on the scores from the
NWEA testing helps to provide students with more help and assistance. Every
time new data is collected new RTI groups are created based on the needs of
students. Data walls have been created to keep track of students progress
throughout the year.
For the 2017-2018 school year instead of house meetings there wiil be grade
level planning meetings 2x a week with Mrs. Arcuri and Mrs, Borst in on the
meetings to help coach and mentor teachers.
This year students will set their own goals based on this years NWEA data.
Administration will be more hands on with students progress throughout the
year, using goal sheets for students setting their own goals.

80 incoming Kindergarten students were screen during the last week of school,
the social worker was involved to get family history and the nurse was involved
for medical history, an ENL teacher was also present to help parents with the
home language questionnaire to help better serve the students.

Mrs. Fortunato went over the process of handling state exams and informed the
board that teachers were provided with this information as well,

Science exams for the 4th and 8th graders are scored in house, in 4th grade 90%
of students passed the exam in 8th grade 63% passed.

Ms. Hartfield brought up the topid oc committees and how the committees at
RCS are dormant. Ms, Hartfield would like to have one board member chair a
committee to allow committees to be more active and accountable. The
possibility of sending out a letter to parents seeking their background to recruit
parents onto these committees.

IHl. Finance



A. Director of Finance Report
Ms. Graham presented all cash accounis for May and june and informed the
board that all accounts are healthy. A list of checks written for both May and june
were presented to the board, a few non reoccurring checks written, Robert,
Phillip, Ferraro and others for school field trips. A checking written in june to Mr
Ankrum was for a professional development out of state,
Ms., Graham informed the board that the annual survey for the title one grant
was submitting, including numbers to each district with how many students were
served free and reduced.
Enrollment planning is at 488 students plus a wait list in each grade. Enrollment
as of fune 355 students returning with all documents, 125 students accepted at
the lcttery and only 106 students completed all registration paperwork. 29 more
students accepted after the lottery and 22 students completed ali registration
documents. 23 more students were accepted in early fuly.
All students can be accommodated in the one building until the North building is
completed.
On July 21st the bid for the general contractors will be opened at 12:00pm. 7
companies picked up the bid documents, the advertisernent was in Newsday. The
cost to advertise in the newspaper was $4,000.
On Thursday July 20th there will be a planning meeting that board members can
attend to go over the plans for the renovation of the two front buildings.
The 2017-2018 Charter School Conference date is june 17th- june 20th in Austin
Texas.
Quotes on passenger vans- seating over 16 passengers is considerad a schoo!
bus. 15 passengers requires a CDL license.
RCS is looking into vans year 2014 or newer, prices vary.,

V. Governance

A. Board Member Concerns (Trustee Histand)
Mr. Histand would like Mr. Ankrum removed as a non-voting board member as be
believes it to be violation. Ms. Hartfield informed the board that as per the new
charter Mr. Ankrum is added as a non-voting board member therefore cannot be
removed. Protocols have been put intc place as to who the board can speak with
and when. Ms. Hartfield put in place that all board members must contact
Kaitlybn requesting information and Kaitlyn will pass along the message and
coltect any necessary information. Appointments to speak with administration
(Mr. Ankrum, Ms. Graham, Mrs. Colas-Williams) must be made before hand via
email and CCing Ms. Hartfield.
Mr. Histand would like Cerini to audit the sustainability of raises and the process
to come up with a salary increase schedule. Ms. Hartfield informed Mr. Histand
that it is offensive to questions Ms. Grahams work without a reason.
Mr. Histand provided charts based on testing scores, Mr. Ankrum responded that
its unfair to compare the charts as his predecessor did not have common core at
that time.

B. Board Training/Retreat
Ms. Hartfield provided dates that Mr. O'Niell is available for a board training. The
board agreed to Tuesday Aug 15th in the evening. The training will be via video
conference with Mr. O'Nieil.






Riverhead Charter School Board of Trustees
Minutes

Board Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday August 22, 2017 at 6:00 PM

RCS Mission Statement

Our mission is to inspire teday’s learners to become tomorrow’s leaders by setting high
academic standards, promoting solution-orientated thinking, and embracing the
cultural diversity of our community,

Trustees Present
Aimee Lomonaco, David Edwards (remote), Natasha Jeffries, Zenobia Hartfield (remote)

Trustees Absent
Harry Histand, Susan Heinz

Guests Present
Deana Fortunato, Jennifer Borst, Kaitlyn Kosiorowski, Laura Arcuri, Nicola Graham,
Raymond Ankrum, Shannon Ruffner

I. Opening Items
A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order
Zenobia Hartfield called a meeting of the board of trustees of Riverhead Charter
School Board of Trustees to order on Tuesday Aug 22, 2017 @ 6:34 PM,
The Riverhead Charter School Board meeting began with the Pledge of
Allegiance.

C. Approve Minutes
Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to approve the july 2017 minutes.
Natasha Jeffries seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the moticn.

Il. Academic Excellence

A, Executive Directors Report
Mr. Ankrum discussed the state test scores compared to Riverhead School
District. He expressed that his predecessor did not prepare teachers for the



common core which started during the 2013-2014 school year. Since 2013-2014
test scores have improves drastically, Mr. Ankrum compared test scores to Riley
in which RCS outscored them even considering Rivernead CSD has more
resources. 3rd grade was shocked with student test scores, 4th grade was
confident on where students scores would fall and 5th grade test scores were
better from one class than the other. RCS out performed the state in ELA for the
first time since Mr. Ankrum has been the executive director, RCS was only 2
points away in Math. There was more response of students for ELA than math in
middle school due to teacher relationships. This years focus is less opt outs. A
plan to improve middle school math grades is to bring in a math consultant to
work with the DCl's and do walk thru's to see what needs to be done in math
classes. In order to develop a high school the 8th grade numbers need to be
more comparable to the state. This year RCS has more math minded teachers.
RCS needs to work on preparing students socially for high school. A shift of
moving them to the North building with help kids better prepare with their own
space. Test prep will begin early in the year to help better prepare students for
testing. For the 2017-2018 school year the staffing is like a breath of fresh air,
RCS has teachers who want to be here. Previous teachers are stepping up to help
new teachers adjust, there is a ton of support among the teaching staff. Teachers
are starting to hold each other accountable. The 2017-2018 teaching staff is very
diverse, happier teachers will hold more accountability.

Mrs. Arcuri, Mrs. Borst, Mrs. Fortunato and Ms. Ruffner discussed the 2 weeks of
August professional development. Each grade level will have 1 hour work
sessions during PD. Sessions have also been separated for old teachers and new
teachers. Depending on what a teacher is teaching determined their PD
scheduled. Three schedules were created for PD: elementary, middle school and
electives. Teachers have been very engaged and excited during PD. Everyday
there is a closing session at 4:00pm to address any guestions for the day.

There will be 2 planning sessions with Mrs. Fortunato and Ms. Ruffner for middle
school a week per section. Items talked about during planning will be used in the
classroom and teachers will be held accountable.

Teachers will be able to attend PD's on and off campus during the year. Teachers
will be able to attend more school visits and have more peer observations.

IH. Finance

A. Director of Finance Report
Ms. Graham discussed cash accounts and ensured the board that all cash
accounts remain at a healthy tevel, A list of checks written was provided to the
board, a few non reoccurring checks written were US Bank for the semi annual
bond payment, capital market advisers, corporate account solutions {quarterly},
CSBM grant consultants, Kickboard (new program for behavioral management)
Newsday (legal notice for bids), Ms. Graham presented the profit and loss sheet
to the board and explained that the board development numbers will be
adjusted. The balancing sheets presented showed healthy accounts. RCS has 20
million in assets. The equity worth and amount continues to increase. Tuition
reconciliation has been completed and RCS only owes Port jefferson School
District $1,700 for a kindergarten student who left RCS. A renewal of insurance
was completed and RCS stayed with Whright insurance.
All important documents were submitted to US Bank. RCS has 499 students
enrolied and is on track with the enroliment plan. RCS increased by 4 sections
which required purchasing of desks, tables and chairs.



Building project update: BID went out and 3 bidders submitting proposals. RCS
went with KG Mechanical, KG Mechanical was not the lowest bidder but they are
able to complete the project by the proposed finish date.

School meals bid was held on August 7th, 2 bidders submitted proposals.
Whitson's outbid Preferred Meals by 4 cents,

An asbestos and lead evaluation was done of the front building and there were
no findings,

IV. Governance

A.

H.

Resolution Cerini and Associates

Aimee Lormnonaco made a motion to continue contract with Cerini and Associates
for the 2017-2018 school year.

Natasha jeffries seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

. Resolution Corporate Accounting Solution

Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to continue contract with Corporate Accounting
Solutions for the 2017-2018 school year,

Natasha Jeffries seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion,

. Resolution Building Project

Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to award the bid to KG Mechanica!l for the
building preject.

Natasha jeffries seconded the moticn.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

. Resolution Meals Program

Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to award the bid contract to Whitson's Culinary
Group.

Natasha Jeffries seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion,

. Resolution for Lamb and Barnowski

Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to retain Lamb and Barnowski for the
2017-2018 school year.

Natasha Jeffries seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

. Board Training Invoice

Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to approve the invoice from Tugboat Education
Service in the amount of $2,500 for board training.

Natasha jeffries seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion,

Committee Membership Letter

Ms. Jeffries presented a draft letter for parents to recruit for committees. Ms.
Jeffries will go back and make adjustrments and present to the board at the next
meeting..

Board Training Recap



The board had a training with Paul O'Niell on August 15th all board members
were in attendance. Mr. O'Niell expressed that the board is in good shape and
suggested the following adjustments.

# of committees- need an executive committee,

RCS must have 12 board meetings a year as per the state.

Adjustment to the policy committee,

Need to add

Facilities, academic and executive committees. A code of ethic pelicy and a
conflict of interast policy must be added for the board.

Mrs. Heintz must sign off on approved board minutes.

V. Other Business

A. School Website
The website needs to be revamped. The mission statement must be on the front
of the website. RCS to look for someone to revamp the website and make it
easily accessible. Board member must be added to the website along with school
leadership.

V1. Executive Session

A. Enter Executive Session
Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to enter executive session at 8:11pm.
Natasha Jeffries seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

B. Human Resources Report

C. Executive Director Report
Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to approve Mr. Ankrum's enroliment bonus for
the 2016-2017 school year in the amount of $14,482.
Natasha Jeffries seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

D. Litigation Update

E. Exit Executive Session
Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to exit executive session at 8:42pm.
Natasha Jeffries seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Vil. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting
David Edwards made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:44pm.
Natasha jeffries seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:44 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
Kaitlyn Kosiorowski



Riverhead Charter School Board of Trustees
Minutes

Board Meeting

Date and Time
Wednesday September 13, 2017 at 6:30 PM

RCS Mission Statement

Our mission s to inspire today’s learners to become tomorrow’s leaders by setting high
academic standards, promoting solution-orientated thinking, and embracing the
culttural diversity of our community.

Trustees Present
David Edwards (remote), Harry Histand, Susan Heinz, Zenobia Hartfield (remote)

Trustees Absent
Aimee Lomonaco, Natasha Jeffries

Guests Present
Anthony Dohrenwend, Deana Fortunato, Jennifer Borst, Kaitlyn Kosiorowski, Laura
Arcuri, Patricia Benevides, Raymond Ankrum, Roseanne Moscatelli, Shannon Ruffner

. Opening Items
A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order
Zenobia Hartfield called a meeting of the board of trustees of Riverhead Charter
School Board of Trustees to order on Wadnesday Sep 13, 2017 @ 6:35 PM.
The RCS board of trustees meeting began with the pledge of allegiance.

C. Approve Minutes
David Edwards made a motion te approve minutes.
Zenobia Hartfield seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

If. Academic Excellence

A, Executive Directors Report
The administration team presented to the board regarding students who scored a
level 1 or low 2 on the state tests. Parents were invited to come in to meet with
teachers and the administration team to help students and discuss ways for



growth. Parents were informed of students scores and were provided a score
report. RCS plans to work with parents to create a plan for specific strategies and
skills to use in the classroom and at home. RCS s working to build a closer
partnership with families.

Ms. Heintz addressed scores in 6th, 7th and 8th grade and questicned how test
scores can be improved, Ms. Heintz would like to see scores in these grades over
the state average. Mr. Ankrum informed the board that 6th, 7th and 8th is the
administrations team concern as well. Mr. Ankrum requested a future work
session to discuss testing data. ELA students are assessed in May and June with
NYSESLAT testing, students are scored on S different levels. NYSITELL testing is
done for incoming students who indicated a language other than English is
spoken at home. These tests are done to gauge and properly service all students.
There are 108 ELA students currently at RCS, a majority of these students are in
the expanding level at 45.5% 34.3% of these students are in the transitioning
level. The largest group of ELA students is in Kindergarten.

September staff professional development was successful, representatives from
OLA Eastern Long Island came out to speak to staff, regarding Latino parents and
how we can better help and understand parent concerns. Biggest concern was
communication, ensuring all social media posts and any letters sent home to
families are translated into Spanish as well.

The first two weeks of school is going well. Teachers are taking the time to go
over proper procedures and expectations of RCS. Classes are practicing fire drill
procedures and expectations as well.

Teachers and DCl's are having weekly meetings to discuss curricuium and data.
RCS hosted meet the teacher night which brought in over 100 families.
Representatives from Literacy Zone and Family services attended to help families
and better services any needs they may have.

Middte school used the first week of school to set up procedures and proper
systems in the classroom. More structures have been put into place to start the
year off strong. A new behavior system for middle school was implemented,
Kickboard was brought on to allow students to earn and loose points for behavior
throughout the day, at the end of the week based on their points they can use
these for rewards, parents are also connected to their child's kickboard so they
can see what is happening during the day. Students came up with the rewards
available for them to receive. Kickboard will also aliow teachers to be held
accountable with negative and positives in the ciassroom. Middie School
Assistant Principal and Dean of Students are monitoring the data and behaviors.
Behaviors taking place in middle school are testing limits and boundraies with
teachers and staff. Students are attempting to take advantage of new teachers
who are getting used to the RCS structure. Professional Development was used
to set structure and set the tone for new teachers. Advisory in middle school has
started, groups of 10 students are put together each morning to meeting and talk
about concerns, academics, behaviors or difficulities in the classroom, this is
done to give students a person who they can feel comfortable with, enough so
that they feel they can go talk to this specific person anytime.

Common core has changed standards for testing, state testing will no longer be
timed and will only be 2 days worth of testing for each test. Last year RCS had a
42% opt out rate. This year RCS plants to bring students and parents in who
opted out last year to inform them of the test and give the power back to the
parents. Third grade scored well on the test with over 60% proficient, this
happened because these teachers taught over the test but given students harder
exams throughout the year.

RCS has a new state llaison Susuan Gibbons, RCS will continue to do what is
being done to keep students improving.

Sepa Mujer a women's empowerment organization is having a gala on October
Sth. This organization has a focus on Latino Women and their rights.



Administration feels attending this gala will be a good opportunity to network
within the community.

Mr. Ankrum discussed potentially sending board clerk Kaitlyn Kosiorowski for
training regarding board minutes.

RCS currently has an enroliment of 495 students, we are receiving more
applications as more parents are learning about our school. RCS would like to
focus on recruitment from the Bellport area due to the schools being built on bad
groups. Demolition of the front buildings will start this week. The North building
as the middle school is expected to open during the christmas break,

Susan Heinz made a motion to purchase a table for 10 people at the cost of
$1,000 for the Sepa Mujer Gala on October 5, 2017.

Harry Histand seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

HI. Finance

A.

Director of Finance Report

Ms. Graham discussed account balances and informed the board that all
accounts are in healthy standing. Ms. Graham provided a list of checks written
minus payroll. An non reoccurring check written #7357 was for a nurse for the
summer school program. A sink hole was repaired in the parking lot, currently the
company is checking all the drains on the property for safety to prevent any
additional sink holes. Checks number 7390 and 7579 were written for GM
Painting a vendor called in to paint the hallways and main lobby during the
summer. Ms. Hartfield gquestioned if more in house painting can be done as
opposed to hiring an outside company. Further information regarding in house
painting by the custodians to be discussed during executive session. Ms. Graham
informed the board that the buses and van purchase is on hole due to other
priorities that needed attention first. Outside auditors came in and completed
their audit in 3 days, no findings were found and the auditors will be back for the
October meeting to present. State audit results will be presented during
executive session. Building renovations, in order to receive the permit 6 issues
need to be addressed first, RCS is currently looking for a new expediter. Update
on school meals, the contract with Whitsons Culinary Group has been sent to the
lawyers for review and approval.

V. Governance

A.

Committee Letter
Committee letter for the board to be sent out to parents this week after being
translated into Spanish.

V. Executive Session

A.

D.

Enter Executive Session

Harry Histand made a moction to enter executive session at 7:40pm.
Susan Heinz seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion,

. Human Resources Report

. Executive Director Report

Exit Executive Session



Harry Histand made a motion to exit executive session at 8:39pm.
David Edwards seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Vi. Closing ltems

A. Adjourn Meeting
Harry Histand made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:41pm.
Susan Heinz seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly macde,

seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:41 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
Kaitlyn Kosiorowski



Riverhead Charter School Board of Trustees
Minutes

Board Meeting

Date and Time
Monday October 30, 2017 at 6:30 PM

RCS Missicon Statement

Our mission is to inspire today's learners to become tomorrow’s leaders by setting high
academic standards, promoting solution-orientated thinking, and embracing the
cuftural diversity of our community.

Trustees Present
Aimee Lomonaco, David Edwards (remocte), Harry Histand, Natasha jeffries, Zenobia
Hartfield (remote)

Trustees Absent
Susan Heinz

Guests Present

Deana Fortunato, Kaitlyn Kosiorowski, Ken Cerini, Laura Arcuri, Nicola Graham,
Raymond Ankrum, Shannon Ruffner

I. Opening ltems

A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order
Zenobia Hartfield calied a meeting of the board of trustees of Riverhead Charter
School Board of Trustees to order on Monday Oct 30, 2017 @ 6:37 PM.
The RCS Board of Trustees meeting began with the pledge of aliegiance.

C. Approve Minutes



David Edwards made a motion to approve minutes from September 13, 2017.
Harry Histand seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Ii. Academic Excellence

A. Executive Directors Report
Mr. Ankrum presented to the board important dates ceming up for RCS. RCS
hosted a parent town hall meeting on October 30 to discuss the current honor roll
program. Parents requested to keep the standards the same but possibly start
honor roil at 3rd or 4th grade. Honor roll is current at 85% in all class and high
honor roll is 90% or higher in all classes.
11/1 Parent conference forms are being sent home (all classes must have a
conference with each parent). 116-11/9 are student quarterlies. 11/3 is a staff pot
luck. Mr. Ankrum presented to bring in a math consultant for the middle school to
work with the DCl's. Nick Tampone wouid cost $100.00 per hour which is lower
than other consultants. Mr. Ankrum is presenting to bring Mr. Tampone on for 5-7
days to focus on middle school. Mr. Tampone will meet with the DCl's and Math
teachers. Payment for Mr. Tampone will come from professional development,
Mr. Ankrum would like to make an addendum to the current charter to add a high
school starting in the 2020-2021 school year. An addendum must be submitted
before December 15th to the board of regents.
Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to hire Nick Tampone as an outside math
consultant at the rate of $100.00 per hour for 10 days during the 2017-2018
school year.
Harry Histand seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.
Natasha Jeffries made a motion to submit an addendum to the current charter to
add a high school starting in the 2020-2021 school year.
Harry Histand seconded the motion,
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

fl1l. Finance

A. Director of Finance Report:
Ms. Graham presented a list of checks written and discussed the following in
detail,
a credit card payment was made to optimum for non payment by leaf an outside
finance company contracted to pay optimum.
Check number 7440- written to crown was for dumpsters.
Check number 7458- written to mastery connect a new program used by RCS
Check number 7442- written to apple for the purchases of 10 macbooks for
classrooms.
Check number 7459- written to MIC a new insurance carrier this payment will be
monthly premium payments.
Check number 7465- written to one way supply for new kitchen equipment.,
Check number 7466- written to P&M doors for repairs on doors throughout the
building.
Check number 7479- written to purchases new rugs for K-2 Classrooms.
Check number 7471- written to Suffolk County rmusic association
Check number 7476- written to Riverhead for building permits
Check number 7482- for new RTI books
Check number 7481- for a new classroom projector.
Check number 7483- written to Hertz for new classroom chairs
Check number 7502- written to Whitsen's the new meals company.



Ms. Graham presented that the Title 1-3 grant applications were submitied, The
total consolidated amount received is $167,503 will be received in monies this
will be allocated to 2 RTI intervention specialist salaries. Title 2 monies will be
aliocated to the Dean of Curriculum salaries and the Title 3 LEP allocated to a
portion of the testing coordinator salary, remaining amounts will be allocated to
operations for a guaranteed usage. RCS received more than projected. Some of
the grant money will be used to help run the summer school program which cost
$25,000 last year. Mrs. LoMonaco wants a wish list of items for the extra maoney
from the grants, monies should not be placed in the general funds. Ms. Hartfield
requests that the surplus of money should have a plan and must be submitted to
the board. Ms. Graham presented that the additional money can offset the cost of
the math consultant, test prep, summer school and a potential for a dip below
488 students. The board would like more information on vans to help get
students to the summer school program.

Ms. Graham presented to the board that the second tuition billing has beer sent
out to districts. RCS served 16 days in September. An emergency repair had to
be done in the parking lot for sink holes. The drainage was not installed properly.
The semi annual qualified construction bond was received in the amount of
$114,897.94. A $100.00 membership fee was paid to the Suffolk ASBO. Two
professional developments on 9/27 for 2 administrators to western Suffolk Boces
in the amount of $60.00 each for math and 2 for ELA. The buildings have begun
construction with KG Mechanical and the insurance was sent to Salerno and all
came back in compliance. Due to not having a final CO for the current building
demolition of the other buildings cannot continue. The CO for the current building
cannot be finalized due to the landscape plan. RCS has submitted a new
application for the CO and are currently waiting the approval. The contract for
Whitsons Culinary Group has been approved by Lamb and Barnowski. RCS
conducted bus drills during the first 7 days of school. Enrollment is at 492 and
RCS budgeted for 488 students.

IV. Governance

A. Presentation by Cerini and Associates
Ken Cerini presented the board with the June 30, 2017 audit report for fiscal year
July 1, 2016- June 30, 2017. The audit was to gain comfort of operations using
testing, supporting documents, contracts and cenfirmations. Mr. Cerini informed
the board that there were no disagreements financially. The issuance cost of the
bonds, there is an offset bond cost on debt, this year this will become an interest
expense, The restricted cash includes the bond monies. Mr. Cerini was
comfortable with the coliection process on receivables and is comfortable with
accounts. The net worth is continuing on an upward trend. RCS has over a years
worth of monies available, RCS liquidity is at a current ration of 5.79 to 1 which is
hoiding at a very strong ratio. RCS has cash balances without restricted cash
giving RCS 579 days worth of monies. RCS is currently outstanding less than a
months worth of receivabies. 96% of income is tuition based. Student FTE
2016-2017 was 411 students revenue per student was $17,747. Expenses have a
strong program service, RCS is spending very little an management at 9.54% and
program at 90.46%. RCS has been much more efficient than the non-profit order
that Gov. Cuomo implemented. Components of operation 1.5 million operations
set off by $559,471 in depreciation. Overall 2016-2017 was a good school year
for RCS and RCS if fiscally strong.
David Edwards made a motion to approve the 2016-2017 audit dene by Cerini
and Associates.
Harry Histand seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unarimously to approve the motion.



V. Other Business

A. S&P Presentation November 8, 2017
Mr. Ankrum presented that the S&P credit rating company has been requested to
come on site for a meeting. The S&P credit rating shows the worthiness to bond
owners. Janet Morally CMA bond guidance has been requested in person to see
what RCS is currently doing. RCS will be leading a presentation to help get a good
S&P score. The Cerini presentation will be used.

VI, Executive Session

A. Executive Director Report
Aimee Lomonace made a motion to enter executive session at 7:41pm.
Harry Histand seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.
Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to enter executive session at 8:13pm.
Harry Histand seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

B. Personnel Matters
Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to send Nicola Graham for training with skill
path for 1 year at a rate of $499.00 per person.
Natasha Jeffries seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion,

C., Personnel Matters
Harry Histand made a motion to exit executive session at 7:54 pm.
Natasha Jeffries seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.
Harry Histand made a motion to exit executive session at 9:09pm.
Aimee Lomonaco seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Vii. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting
Harry Histand made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:15pm.
Aimee Lomonaco seconded the maotion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 9:15 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
Kaitlyn Kosiorowski



Riverhead Charter School Board of Trustees
Minutes

Board Meeting

Date and Time
Thursday November 30, 2017 at 6:30 PM

RCS Mission Statement

Our mission is to inspire today’s learners to become tomorrow’s leaders by setting high
academic standards, promoting solution-orientated thinking, and embracing the
cultural diversity of our community.

Trustees Present
Aimee Lomonaco, David Edwards {remote), Natasha Jeffries (remote), Susan Heinz,
Zenobia Hartfield

Trustees Absent
Harry Histand

Guests Present

Carmecha Langhorne, Deana Fortunato, jennifer Borst, Kaitlyn Kosiorowski, Laura
Arcuri, Patricia Benevides, Raymond Ankrum, Roseann Maoscatelli, Shannon Ruffner,
Tijuana Fulford

I. Opening ltems

A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order
Zenobia Hartfield called a meeting of the board of trustees of Riverhead Charter
School Board of Trustees to order on Thursday Nov 30, 2017 @ 6:40 PM,

C. Approve Minutes



Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to approve minutes from the Board Meeting on
10-30-17.

Natasha Jeffries seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

I1. Public Comment

A. Public Comment
Members from the Butterfly Effect Project came to present. Tijuana Fulford and
Carmecha Lanhorne presented a video which showed the board a little bit about
what the Butterfly Project is and does. This program bring a holistic approach to
girls and their families, to help giris succeed, challenge the girls on their own
level, gives tools to help pull them up to speed at their own pace, to encourage
girls to be the best they can be. They also offer for families, breaking barries
which helps parents with past convictions to seal their records which will help
them get better jobs. They also help families to improve credit ratings, this helps
the girls to see their parents strive to be better. Meetings are held every other
Wednesday in the library from 2:45 to 3:30pm. The girls in the program do a 30
minute craft, learn dance moves, the butterfly buzz and have a snack. President
Fulford gives her phone number tc all the girls in case one of them ever needs to
call her. She holds the girls accountable by being in contact with their teachers to
get updates on their giris. Teaching the girls to learn how to be responsible for
themselves.

. Academic Excellence

A. Executive Directors Report
Mr. Ankrun informed the board of the new honor roll policy. On November 30 RCS
held a parent town hall meeting tc discuss the former policies and hear parents
feedback. Parent suggested to have honor roli start in 4th grade instead of the
lower grades to allow students in the fower grades to continue to love learning
instead of the stress of honor roll. New criteria will be 85% and above in all core
subjects and an 85% or above average in electives will be honor rolf, high honor
rotl is 90% or above in all core subjects and an average in electives will be high
honor roll. Students must also be moral students, no detentions, bus conduct
reports, lunch detention or more than 4 unexcused absences in the quarter. Ms,
Ruffner discussed having Mr. Nick. Timpone coming in to work with the middle
school math team, the first visit was extremely beneficial. The middle school
math team was given to opportunity to talk with him and ask questions. Mr.
Timpone observed all the math classes during the day and debriefed with each
math teacher. He believes there was a positive culture and students were
engaged, the lesson design is strong. Mr. Timpone emphasized on norms in the
classroom. A request to bring Mr. Timpone back for an addition 5 days through
state testing. On Mr. Timpone's next visit he believes more expiorations in math
to make the infermation they are learning more refevant. Mr. Timpone is
reviewing 1st quarter quarterlies to help move forward with curriculum and fill in
the missing holes. Mr. Timpone will come up with an action plan for teachers
based on data from quarter one. Mrs. Borst discussed CG! which is cognitively
guided instruction. This is a curriculum used for grades K-5 and allows students
to solve problerns with multiple strategies. This program has been rolled out
slowly with lessons 2x a week and increasing to 3x a week in December. A CGl
lesson tells a story incorporating probtems, the students repeat the story,
questions are asked for understanding and the students then solve the problem
how they want. This program is more student based teaching instead of direct
teacher teaching. Teachers coach and facilitate conversations and analyze
students work, This is a program in which more materials are needed. Mr.



Ankrum informed the board that math is an area to grow in and believe bringing
this on full scale will be beneficial. Mr. Ankrum discussed student test prep which
used to be held on Saturday mornings but the attendance was not where it needs
to be. Turning the test prep program into an after school program will having a
stronger impact as parents will most likely be in a better place to come pick
students up after school instead of dropping them off and picking them up on a
Saturday. RCS currently has budgeted $10,000 for test prep the cost to run test
prep after school would be roughiy $5,800. Excess monies from grant can be
used to purchase CGI materials. December 15 is the deadline for submission to
amend the charter to add high school, Mr. Ankrum informed the board the
materials and information will be available for review by December 10th. Some
locations for a high school have been scouted out in Riverhead. Mr. Ankrum gave !
an update to the construction projects, a few changes orders came up. The
sprinkier systern in the North building was never connected the contractors are
proposing a wet system for the buiiding at an additional cost. The elevator is held
up by 3.5 months. Marvin from Jarro did a walk thru of the demolition on the
basement in the admin building and did not find any mold only a wet carpet.
Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to approve the purchase of CGl materials to
bring on full scale for grades K-5 at the cost of $12,000.

Susan Heinz seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to approve 5 additional dates for Mr. Nick
Timpone at the cost of $100 per hour totaling $4,500 through state testing.
Susan Heinz seconded the motion,

The board VOTED unanimously te approve the motion.

IV. Finance

A. Director of Finance Report
Ms. Graham presented the cash accounts to the board and informed the board
that all accounts are healthy. The first quarter profit and loss sheet was <
presented which showed RCS is in the positive income for the first quarter, there
were more expenses for outside services which will fix itself by the end of the |
year. Classrcom supplied were high due to the need to purchase 70 more student’
desks. Dues for new memberships such as Mastery Connect were new items.
Facilities cost was higher due to the need of the clean up of the two front
buitdings. Technology was up due to needing to purchase more teacher
computers. RCS is in line with the budget and moving in a positive direction. Ms.
Graham did tuition billing and submitted to district before the end of September.
The 3rd installment for tuition billing to take place for November and December.
Ms. Graham informed the board that Mr, Ankrums credit card is only used for the
amazon account. October held the annual color run which profited roughly
$1,200. A few new transactions were,
Check #7511 & 7522 to KG Mechanical for the second payment to the contractor.
Check #7530 to musicians friend for equipment storage.
7575- Robert Ferraro the architect for the renovations of the buildings.
Ms. Graham reconciled information with eyemed, hartford, lincoln and aetna as
there were employees whao no longer worked here who were stili enrolied and
employees who do work here and were not enrolled. Ms. Graham miet with 20
employees to sit and ensure everything was enrolled property. RCS was
penalized for a late submission to the retirement system that was never
completed by the HR manager, Ms. Graham compileted this information.
Installation of a camera system in the new bulidings will be roughly $40,000 for
the cameras and installation and $25,000 for the server and TV set up. Ms.
Graham is requesting an amendment of dates for the annual financial statements.
for US Bank to be changed from a 45 day submission to match with the EMMA



submission at 150 day. The Hispanic heritage night took place in October and
was another huge success. BED's day was October 4th and required information
was submitted on time. Consulting an engineer to inspect the drainage for the
roof to ensure they were piped to the underground drainage. The final
landscaping inspection approved and the new grass can now be planted, once
this is completed we can call for a new inspection for the final CO. Update on
enrollment FTE 493,

Zenobia Hartfield made a motion to amend the submission date for financial
submission to US bank to match the submission date of EMMA, The date change
would be from 45 days to 150 days for submission,

Susan Heinz seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

V. Other Business

A. School Website
Mr. Edwards presented two companies proposals or quotes to revamp the school
website. The proposals included revamping to match ali fonts, colors, logo. The
companies would help write history of the school and include feadership and
teacher bios on the school site.
Aimee Lomonace made a motion to bring on Rodriguez Valle Creative at the cost
of approximately $14,500 to revamp the school's website.
Susan Heinz seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion,

VI. Executive Session

A. Enter Executive Session
Aimee Lommonaco made a motion to enter executive session at 8:32 PM.
Natasha feffries seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

B. Personnel Matters/Legal Matters
C. Executive Director Report

D. Exit Executive Session
Aimee Lomonace made a moticn to Exit executive session at 9:13 PM,
David Edwards seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion,

VIIL. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting
Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to adjourn the November 30, 2017 meeting at
9:14 PM |
Susan Heinz seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion,
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 9:14 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
Kaitlyn Kosiorowski



Executive Director Report
Regular Board Meeting; November 2017
Updated Honor roll policy: Arcuri

CGl— Borst (using additional resources) as per the board Re' additional
monies from the state.

Test Prep— (using additional resources) turning it into an after school
program- as per the board re: additional monies from the state.

High school amendment update

«Survey to parents

« Date of submission

- Due date in case the board would like to review prior to submission
« Viewing of potential sites

Update on construction-

- coupie of change orders, but nothing too crazy. The major hold up is
the elevator.

- Update on construction of the middle schoo! and the admin building.

. Video of the progress.

«Is there any else to add via Nicola?






Riverhead Charter School Board of Trustees
Minutes

Board Meeting

Date and Time
Thursday January 18, 2018 at 6:30 PM

RCS Mission Statement

Our mission is to inspire today's learners to become tomorrow’s leaders by setting high
academic standards, promoting solution-orientated thinking, and embracing the
cultural diversity of our community.

Trustees Present
Aimee Lomonaco, David Edwards (remote), Harry Histand, Natasha Jeffries, Susan
Heinz

Trustees Absent
Zenobia Hartfield

Guests Present
Kaitlyn Kesiorowski, Laura Arcuri, Nicola Graham, Raymond Ankrum, Shannon Ruffner

I. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order
Aimee Lomonaco called a meeting of the beard of trustees of Riverhead Charter
School Board of Trustees to order on Thursday jan 18, 2018 @ 6:34 PM.
The fanuary 18, 2018 board meeting began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

C. Approve Minutes



Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to approve minutes from the Board Meeting on
11-30-17.

Susan Heinz seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

1. Academic Excellence

A. Executive Directors Report
Mr. Ankrum requested the board to be more visible at RCS events, suggesting
that board members commit to attending specific events held at the school. Mr.
Ankrum informed the board that a Holiday party is in the waorks, 2 locations have
been contacted for pricing. Giorgios at $50pp and The Oar for $55 per couple. Mr,
Ankrum questions board fundraising suggesting a high end Chinese Auction.
Capital One came in to do a presentation regarding rates for standing cash they
have a rate if 1.25%. Mr. Ankrum suggested the board come to tour the
construction that is taking place in the North and Admin buildings. Mr. Ankrum
questioned a board retreat and if there is any plan for this. Mr. Ankrum
questioned the strategic board goals and suggested that they are align with his
goals for the school. A suggestion was given to the board to conduct work
sessions once a month before each board meeting to help move board meetings
along in a timely manner. RCS is looking to staff the HR position as a temporary
position before hiring full time. Mr. Ankrum informed the board that the second
round of NWEA testing will take place the first week of February.
Mrs. Arcuri presented to the board that after school test prep began on Tuesday
January 8th. The students targeted for test prep were students who scored a 2
last year in either math or ELA. ELA test prep is being held on Tuesday and Math
is help on Thursdays. Test prep was moved to afternoons as Saturday mornings
were difficult for families and there was less participation. Since moving the test
prep to the afternoons the participation has increased by 50%. Ms. Ruffner
presented to the board information on professional development for staff. The 1st
grade team along with Mrs. Arcuri, Mrs. Borst and Ms. Ruffner will be goingto a
school in the city that has had success with the CG! program to see how they use
the program and what has been successful for them. Currently the 1st grade
team has been rolling out the program here at RCS. The middle school is warking
with the norms of teaching and questioning the students in regards to electives.
RCS is looking to start mindfulness Monday's for staff led by Ms. Sanna. RCS is
beginning to work with teachers on the new NYS standards that will be rolled out
in 2020, goal is to get teachers prepared before hand so it can be implemented
smoothly.

lil. Finance

A. Director of Finance Report
Ms. Graham informed the board that at the February meeting she will be
reporting for both the months of December and january. Ms. Graham requested
before the next board meeting that Mrs. LoMonaco, Mr. Histand, Ms. Graham and
Mr. Ankrum meet to discuss any change orders with the construction. Ms.
Graham informed the board that all cash accounts are healthy.
Few items presented, Pizza was purchased using the school credit card for the
aftercare students before the concerts, MIC Wright is the insurance payment, KG
Mechanical is the contractor and Philip Ferraro is the architect. Check #7631
written to Firefly computers was for new Chromebooks, Ms. Graham form 8038-
AP to the {RS for recoup of $118,322 for construction. RCS must ge out for BID for
a new security system the bids are due by jJanuary 22, 2018. Former Dean of
Students of RCS is now an NYPD officer who came to RCS and did a walk through
to help update a safe plan. With 3 buildings a safe plan will be more complex,



Mrs. LoMonaco will put Mr. Ankrum in touch with the security team at Peconic
Bay Medical Center to possible come and do a walk through of the building to
point out safety concerns. Ms. Graham informed the board that the required fire
drills and lock down drills were completed on time.

IV. Governance

A. School Website
Mr. Edwards presented to the board new logos for RCS and asked the hoard to
choose. The board chose the lettering from page 10 with centering "Charter
School". Next step will be to choose the colors, and the font.

V. Executive Session

A. Enter Executive Session
Susan Heinz made a motion to enter executive session at 7:35 PM.
Harry Histand seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

B. Personnel Matters
C. Executive Director Report

D. Exit Executive Session
David Edwards made a motion to exit executive session at 7:47 PM.
Susan Heinz seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

VI. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting
Susan Heinz made a motion to adjourn the fanuary 18, 2018 board meeting at
7:49 PM,
Natasha Jeffries seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:49 PM,

Respectfully Submitted,
Kaitlyn Kosiorowski
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Riverhead Charter School Board of Trustees
Minutes

RCS Board Work Session

Date and Time
Saturday February 3, 2018 at 8:00 AM

Trustees Present
Aimee Lomonaco, David Edwards (remote), Harry Histand, Natasha Jeffries, Susan
Heinz, Zenobia Hartfield

Trustees Absent
None

Guests Present
Kaitlyn Kosiorowski

. Opening ltems
A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order
Zenobia Hartfield called a meeting to order on Saturday Feb 3, 2018 @ 8:38 AM,

H. Governhance

A. Board Goals
Set aside to be discussed at the next work session.

B. Executive Director's Contract
Contract discussion. Ms. Heintz will prepare the contract submission to Mr.
Raymond Ankrum,
Susan Heinz made a motion to change the Executive Directors title to
Superintendent of Schoals, due to the expansion and growth of Riverhead
Charter School.



Aimee Lomonaco seconded the motion.

The team VOTED to approve the motion.

Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to approve Mr. Raymond Ankrums contract with
revisions as discussed by the board.

Susan Heinz seconded the motion.

The team VOTED to approve the motion.

C. Potential New Board Member Resume
Position will be offered as a new committee member.

{il. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting
Aimee Lomonaco made a moticn to adjourn the work session at 10:56am.
Harry Histand seconded the motion.
The team VOTED to approve the motion.
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 10:56 AM.

Respectfully Submitted,
Susan Heinz



Riverhead Charter School Board of Trustees
Minutes

Board Meeting

Date and Time
Thursday March 15, 2018 at 6:30 PM

RCS Mission Statement

Our mission is to inspire today’s learners to become tomorrow’s leaders by setting high
academic standards, promoting solution-orientated thinking, and embracing the
cuftural diversity of our community.

Trustees Present
Aimee Lomonaco, David Edwards (remote), Harry Histand, Natasha Jeffries, Susan
Heinz

Trustees Absent
Zenobia Hartfield

Guests Present

Barbara Liguori, Deana Fortunato, Jennifer Borst, Kaitlyn Kosiorowski, Ken Ensley, Laura
Arcuri, Raymond Ankrum, Shannon Ruffner

I. Opening ltems

A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Calil the Meeting to Order
Aimee Lomonaco calied a meeting of the board of trustees of Riverhead Charter
Schoeol Board of Trustees to order on Thursday Mar 15, 2018 @ 6:30 PM,

C. Approve Minutes



Susan Heinz made a motion to approve minutes from the Board Meeting on
01-18-18.

Aimee Lomonaco seconded the motion,

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

D. Approve Work Session Minutes
Susan Heinz made a motion to approve minutes from the RCS Board Work
Session on 02-03-18,
Aimee Lomonace seconded the motion
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

II. Public Comment
A, Public Comment
Itl. Academic Excellence

A. Executive Directors Report
Mrs. Arcuri presented to the board about RTI Tier 3 students. Based on NWEA
results and reading level students in grades K-5 are placed into smaller groups
for additional help. RTI Tier 3 part 1 was a 12 week program for 5 days a week for
45 minutes a day. 32 students were placed in Tier 3 RT! instruction. Student data
was collected and leadership met with teachers, students, and RTI teachers to
discuss plan for potential for SPED evaluations. Mr. Edwards requested more data
presentations with more in depth data reported. Mr. Edwards suggested bringing
on a company to create data reports. Mrs. LoMonace requested an academic
wish list.
Stop, Drop and Test were done for grades 3-8. Stop,Drop and Test is a mock test
created for ELA and Math to give the students to opportunity to be in a testing
setting before the state exams. The entire schoc! goes into testing mode,
ensuring protocols, procedures and accommodations are being met. The test is
made up of released questions from previous years. Mastery connect is used to
analyze data. Regarding state testing an area of concern is the unknown. The
state test is changing this year.
Next Generation Learning is the edited version of the common core which will
begin next year. RCS is already having conversations with teachers regarding
this and helping to better prepare them for the roll out.
Mr. Ankrum suggested the board to have a worksession before the April board
meeting. A tentative date of March 31st was suggested, an email was sent to all
board members for confirmation. Mr. Ankrum would like an email sent to Regent
Tilles thanking him for his support regarding the RCS Charter School High School
expansion. Mrs. LoMonaco and Mr. Histand agreed on March 22, 2018 at 10:00
am for a facility walk through. March 29, 2018 will be RCS first Womens History
Month career cafe from 12:00pm to 2:00pm. Spring break to be held March 30 to
April 6. Custodial projects for February break were not completed on time. Mr.
Histand and Mrs. LoMonaco agreed to an April 10, 2018 finance meeting with Ms.
Graham at 5:00pm. Mr. Anrkum to reach out to a realtor and real estate attorney
regarding space for the new high school,

IV. Finance

A. Director of Finance Report
Ms. Graham discussed about the Capital One presentation. A 1,5% interest rate is
more appealing than our current rate. Capital One will also give RCS more access
to monies from Grants.



Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to Close Suffolk County National Bank Revenue
(4150) account and transfer the funds to open a new business checking account
with Capital One Bank in the amount of $59,966 plus additional interest to date
of closing.

Natasha jeffries seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the maotion.

Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to invest $2,000.000 from Bridgehampton
National Bank operating account (2455) into a money market account with
Capital One at a 1.5% interest rate locked in for one year.

Susan Heinz seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimousiy to approve the motion.

Ms. Graham presented accounts healthy as of November 2017 and December
2017. List of checks from December was presented. January and February tuition
billing was sent out to the 14 current district. The annual investor cali took place
on December 29th, 2017. Enroliment as of December 31, 2017 was 4392 out of
the max 500 students, Ms. Graham submitted the 390 Tax return form on time
A tist of January checks was presented

Ck #7671 Math Consultant Nick Tampone (requested a report from Mr. Tampone)}
Ck #7738 Rodriguez Valle- Website revamp

Ck #7677 Capital Market Advisers (organize annual meeting and all reports)

Ck #7695 MD Electrical- Service wires in the building.

Ck #7701 PM Doors- Fixed locks on all doors to lock from the inside.

RCS is looking into more security for classrooms. Potential tent shield on
windows.

Enroliment kick off 76 completed applications and RCS is fooking to fill 86 seats.
G8% intent to returns recejved.

W2's were sent out to staff either by mail or electronically based on employees
preference.

The semi annual bond was paid on time.

Professional Development 2 administrators went to Boces for Science and 1 went
to Teachers Coliege.

First guarter financial statement were filed.

The December 2017 Quarter Balance sheet was presented and showed all assets
are in good standing. Even after the debt RCS is still positive.

Desks and chairs were order to replace damaged ones. Facility repairs for
painting at a cost of $10,000 was completed.

Bids for the security system was completed and Bids were received from Digital
and Network Outsource. Digital is not a part of ERate and Network Gutsource is
which will give us back 85% of erate eligibility.

Susan Heinz made a motion to approve and award decision for installation of
security camera system for North and Administration building and upgrade in the
main building at the cost of $86,015.986.

Aimee Lomonaco seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

An extension of the Certificate of Occupancy for the main building has been
granted until july 2018, once the weather is warmer the new grass can be
planted. A change in work orders has been presented. The main building will
need a new roof due to poor installation of the HVAC units.

Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to accept and approve change order number
one from Contractors KG Mechanical regarding the adjustment of the windows in
the amount of $32,839.

Susan Heinz seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Susan Heinz made a motion to accept and approve the change order number one
from Contractors KG Mechanical for the upgrade to the sprinkler system,
additional foam instaliation in the attic, modification of steel and floor joints for
the elevator in the amount of $57,616.00.



Aimee Lomonaco seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

V. Governance

A. Board on Track Invoice
Tabled to investigate the $3,000 increase.

B. Center for Workplace Solutions Invoice
Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to approve the invoice from Center for
Workplace Solutions in the amount of $877.50.
Susan Heinz seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

VI. Other Business

A. Presentation by Capital One
A presentation was given by Mr. Ensley and Ms. Liguori from Capital One Bank.
They met with Mr. Ankrum and Ms. Graham regarding how to help the school not
only with banking but in other ways as well. Capital One has a Junior
Achievement program which can help the school with donations and other
programs. Capital one is currently offering a 1.5% rate in their money market
savings account. Every 1 million dollars will put back $15,000. Capital one offers
online banking, deposits and transfers. Capital One will come to RCS to open the
account and have all documents signed. Ms. Graham voiced that RCS should take
advantage of the interest rate and invest $2 million dollars from the
Bridgehampton National Bank account. Capital One can atso help with marketing
and applying for grants. With the expansion of RCS Capital One would be will to
help with funding. Capital One employees are required to have a certain number
of volunteer hours and they are held at high standards for giving back to the
community., .

Vil. Executive Session

A. Enter Executive Session
Harry Histand made a motion to enter executive session at 8:39PM.
Natasha Jeffries seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

B. Executive Director Report

C. Executive Directors Contract Presentation
Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to To complete payment of the performance
bonus incentive for Mr. Raymond Ankrum in the amount of $5032.00 from the
2016-2017 school year.
Susan Heinz seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

D. Litigation Update

E. Exit Executive Session
Harry Histand made a motion to exit executive session at 8:48PM.
Susan Heinz seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.



VIl Closing Iltems

A. Adjourn Meeting
susan Heinz made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:49 PM,
Aimee Lomonaco seconded the motion,
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion,
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon moetion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:49 PM,

Respectfully Submitted,
Kaitlyn Kosiorowski






Riverhead Charter School Board of Trustees
Minutes

Board Meeting

Date and Time
Thursday April 19, 2018 at 6:30 PM

RCS Mission Statement

Our mission is to inspire today’s learners to become tomorrow’s leaders by setting high
academic standards, promoting solution-orientated thinking, and embracing the
cultural diversity of our community.

Trustees Present
Aimee Lomonaco, David Edwards (remote), Harry Histand, Natasha Jeffries, Susan
Heinz

Trustees Absent
Zenobia Hartfield

Guests Present
Deana Fortunato, Jennifer Borst, Kaitlyn Kosiorowski, Laura Arcuri, Nick Timpone, Nicola
Graham, Raymond Ankrum, Shannon Ruffner

. Opening Items
A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order
Aimee Lomonaco called a meeting of the board of trustees of Riverhead Charter
School Board of Trustees to order on Thursday Apr 19, 2018 @ 6:31 PM.

C. Approve Minutes
Susan Heinz made a motion to approve minutes from the Board Meeting on
03-15-18.



Natasha Jeffries seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Il. Academic Excellence

A. Executive Directors Report
Mr. Nick Timpone presented the board regarding the coaching he has done with
the middle school math teachers and classes. He started off by saying that the
climate of RCS is very welcoming and warm and that the classes are very well
behaved. Mr. Timpone has been at RCS for a total of 15 days, in which he has
done many observations and has provided feedback to teachers, Mr. Timpone
has reviewed the current curriculum and made recommendations. The two
teacher classes Mr. Timpone suggested the teachers use parallel teaching to
make sure students are receiving the full benefit of the two teachers. With
parallel teaching one teacher leads and the other teacher target manages, this
allows more student response and engagement. Mr. Timpone made suggestions
for teachers in regards to open ended questions to allow and encourage students
to participate. Mr. Timpone suggested RCS start using the Singapore Curriculum
which he believes to allow students to be more successful. Mr. Timpone
suggested RCS get text books in for all students to use and graph paper
notebooks.
Mr. Ankrum discussed the finance meeting that took place to discuss the
preliminary budget along with the profit and loss of last year. Budget is in line
with no major concerns. A May work session was proposed for May 12 all member
accepted this date. Marci with board on track lowered the annual cost for this
year back to $9,995. Board members are encouraged to utilize board on track.
Mr. Ankrum presented to 2018-2019 school calendar and informed the board that
the calendar is aligned with the districts due to busing. Opt out rate is down to
21% from 34% last year. The opt out rate is down due to have parent
conversations and student conversations. Spirit week was in March, the iron chef
challenge at RCS through Cornell. The contractor next door at POD's will be
meeting with Mr. Ankrum in regards to developing the last behind RCS.

lil. Finance

A. Director of Finance Report
Ms. Graham presented that cash account balances are healthy. List of checks
written was provided and check number 7830 was addressed as Maggio being
the new garbage disposal company. School lunch served 22 days in March.
Lottery took place on April 17 and close to 100 people showed up. 120 completed
applications were entered into the lottery on 8 of those applications were placed
on the wait list. RCS has many teachers from Mercy High School applying for
jobs. Enroliment update 91% of current RCS students will be returning next year.
RCS is projected to have 550 students enrolled for 2018-2019, 3 kindergarten
classes with 25 students in each. Building project update, Network Outsource it
setting up security cameras using one fiber line in the main building which will
feed the network to the other two buildings.
Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to approve the amendment of prior Motion #2
from the March 15, 2018 Board of Trustees meeting, to close Peoples United
Bank, Revenue (4150) account and transfer the funds to open a new business
checking account with Capital One Bank in the amount of $59,966 plus additional
interest to date of closing to be postponed to July 10, 2018.
Susan Heinz seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.



Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to approve to move $1,000 out of the
Bridgehampton Nation Bank operating account (2455) to open a Capital One
checking account.

Susan Heinz seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

IV. Governance

A. 2018-2019 School Calendar
Harry Histand made a motion to approve the FSY 2018-2019 calendar.
Natasha Jeffries seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

V. Other Business

A. Board On Track Invoice
Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to approve the Board on Track invoice for one
year in the amount of $9,995.
Natasha Jeffries seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

VI. Closing Items

A. Enter Executive Session
Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to enter executive session at 7:50 PM.
Harry Histand seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

B. Exit Executive Session
Harry Histand made a motion to exit executive session at 8:04 PM.
David Edwards seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

C. Adjourn Meeting
David Edwards made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:05 PM.
Susan Heinz seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 9:30 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
Kaitlyn Kosiorowski



Riverhead Charter School Board of Trustees
Minutes

Board Meeting

Date and Time
Tuesday May 15, 2018 at 6:30 PM

RCS Mission Statement

Our mission is to inspire today’s learners to become tomorrow’s leaders by setting high
academic standards, promoting solution-orientated thinking, and embracing the
cultural diversity of our community.

Trustees Present
Aimee Lomonaco, David Edwards (remote), Harry Histand, Susan Heinz, Zenobia
Hartfield (remote)

Trustees Absent
Natasha Jeffries

Guests Present
Deana Fortunato, Jennifer Borst, Joessie Matthews, Kaitlyn Kosiorowski, Laura Arcuri,
Nicola Graham, Raymond Ankrum, Shannon Ruffner

l. Opening Items
A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order
Aimee Lomonaco called a meeting of the board of trustees of Riverhead Charter
School Board of Trustees to order on Tuesday May 15, 2018 @ 6:32 PM.
The RCS Board of Trustees May 15, 2018 meeting began with the pledge of
allegiance.

C. Approve Minutes



Susan Heinz made a motion to approve minutes from the Board Meeting on
04-19-18.

Harry Histand seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Il. Academic Excellence

A. Executive Directors Report
Mr. Ankrum suggested the board to schedule a June work session date. Mrs.
LoMonaco will send an email to ail board members to set a date. On May 25th the
State will be at RCS for their annual visit, Mr. Ankrum requested board members
to be present. Construction of both buildings is moving along, the administration
building is running through the punch list, the middle school building is roughly
4-6 weeks before completion. The middle school will be ready to be opened in the
fall. Hiring needs, Mr. Ankrum suggested a hiring committee for the custodial
positions, possibly doing a temp to permanent position. Accounts payable clerk,
giving more hands to touch money and documents before being finalized with
Ms. Graham. Bilingual Administrative Assistant at the front desk. Human
Resources Manager. Academic positions 7-8 ELA teacher, 6-8 Special Education
Teacher, Middle School Principal. Mr. Ankrum requested the board take part in
the Middle School Principal hiring.
Mr. Ankrum met with Salerno (insurance broker) and once an HR manager is
hired RCS can start making strides to move away from using Extensis.

I1l. Finance

A. Director of Finance Report
Ms. Graham presented that all cash accounts are healthy. A list of checks was
provided and check number 7898 to Terry DiResta was for uniforms to keep in
the nurses office for students. RCS served 15 days of meals in April. Kaiser began
spraying the property for ticks. Profit and Loss and third quarter balance sheets
were submitted to the board for review. Cash accounts and cash received are
positive. Ms. Graham presented the 3rd quarter profit and loss and ensured the
board that accounts are healthy. The poverty account report was submitted to
SED with 75% of students receiving free or reduced lunch. Ms. Graham issued the
6th and final district billing for this school year. Ms. Graham presented the
2018-2019 school budget to the board. 545 students enrolled with a max of 550.
Average revenue is $1,019,251.00 cost of personnel expenses, operational
expenses and tax bonds $998,915.00. Capital expenses will be for the cost of 2
vans not factored into the budget along with a new roof for the main building not
factored into the budget. Reap grants received will be used to cover the cost of
new technology.
Susan Heinz made a motion to approve the 2018-2019 school year budget.
Harry Histand seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

IV. Governance

A. Board of Trustees Role Vote
Ms. Hartfield vacated her position as Riverhead Charter School board president,
but remain as a trustee.
Harry Histand made a motion to nominate Aimee LoMonaco as Riverhead Charter
School Board of Trustees President.
Susan Heinz seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.



Susan Heinz made a motion to to nominate David Edwards as the Riverhead
Charter School Board of Trustees Vice President.

Harry Histand seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Susan Heinz made a motion to Continue Harry Histands position as the Riverhead
Charter School Board of Trustees Treasurer.

Aimee Lomonaco seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to continue Susan Heintz position as the
Riverhead Charter School Board of Trustees Secretary.

Harry Histand seconded the motion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Mrs. Aimee LoMonaco accepted the position as Board of Trustees President. Mr.
David Edwards accepted the position as the Board of Trustees Vice President. Mr.
Harry Histand accepted the position of Board of Trustees Treasurer. Ms. Susan
Heintz accepted the position as the Board of Trustees Secretary.

V. Other Business

A. Potential Board of Trustee Candidate
Ms. Hartifield welcomed Ms. Matthews to the board meeting. Ms. Matthews
previously submitted paperwork to become a Riverhead Charter School Board
Trustee. Ms. Matthews has one child currently attending RCS and two children
who graduated from RCS. Prior to attending RCS her children attended a charter
school in the city. Ms. Matthews loves RCS and believes she works well with the
teachers and staff. At this time the Riverhead Charter School board does not feel
is is the optimal time to bring on a new board trustee. Ms. Hartfield presented Ms.
Matthews to work on a board committee for the time being until the board is
ready to bring on new members.

B. Butteryfly Effect Project
Butterfly Effect Project has been tabled until the June 2018 meeting.

VI. Closing Items

A. Enter Executive Session
Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to enter executive session at 7:40 PM.
Harry Histand seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

B. Executive Session

C. Exit Executive Session
Harry Histand made a motion to exit executive session at 8:07 PM.
Aimee Lomonaco seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

D. Adjourn Meeting
Harry Histand made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:08 PM.
David Edwards seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 9:30 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,



Kaitlyn Kosiorowski
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Riverhead Charter School Board of Trustees
Minutes

Board Meeting

Date and Time
Thursday June 21, 2018 at 6:30 PM

RCS Mission Statement

Our mission is to inspire today’s learners to become tomorrow’s leaders by setting high
academic standards, promoting solution-orientated thinking, and embracing the
cultural diversity of our community.

Trustees Present
Aimee Lomonaco, David Edwards (remote), Harry Histand, Natasha Jeffries, Susan
Heinz, Zenobia Hartfield (remote)

Trustees Absent
None

Guests Present
Deana Fortunato, Jennifer Borst, Kaitlyn Kosiorowski, Laura Arcuri, Nicola Graham,
Raymond Ankrum, Shannon Ruffner, Tijuana Fulford

I. Opening ltems
A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order
Aimee Lomonaco called a meeting of the board of trustees of Riverhead Charter
School Board of Trustees to order on Thursday Jun 21, 2018 @ 6:38 PM.
The Riverhead Charter School Board of Trustees meeting began with the pledge
of allegiance.

C. Approve Minutes



Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to approve minutes from the Board Meeting on
05-15-18.

Susan Heinz seconded the maotion.

The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

D. Public Comment
Ms. Fulford from the Butterfly Effect Project presented to the board what the
Butterfly Effect Project is and how it helps girls. Ms. Fulford has been coming to
RCS every 2 weeks to work with girls nominated by their teachers to be apart of
this program. The Butterfly Effect Project is a program designed to teach girls to
be kind, to be successful, to be respectful and to help teach them to be the best
"them" that they can be.. The Butterfly Effect Project started at RCS with 24
students and ended with 28. Ms. Fulford explained how the Butterfly Effect
Project is a non profit organization that works off of grants, fundraising and
donations. The Butterfly Effect Project operated at RCS at no cost for the
2017-2018 school year. Ms. Fulford is proposing a $2,500 stipend for the
2018-2019 school year to operate the Butterfly Effect Project at RCS.
Aimee Lomonaco made a motion to approve the requested $2,500 stipend to the
Butterfly Effect Project for the 2018-2019 school year.
Susan Heinz seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

Il. Academic Excellence

A. Executive Directors Report
Mr. Ankrum presented to the board requesting the board meet more with having
a board meeting every month and having more work sessions. Mr. Ankrum
informed the board that schools have been closed due to board members not
meeting. Mrs. LoMonaco suggested mapping out a calendar for all meetings for
the year including work sessions.
Construction to the Administration building and North building is done and
contractors are just running through their final punch list for both buildings. Mr.
Ankrum invited the board members to come and see the buildings.
Upcoming open positions.
Two custodial positions
Accounts Payable
Bi-Lingual Administrative Assistant
HR Specialist or Manager.
Extensis is providing a list of questions to ask when starting the hiring process for
the HR position.
Middle School Principal
7&8 ELA Teacher
6th to 8th grade Special Education Teacher.
Mr. Ankrum reported that the 4th grade students took the Science State exam
and achieved 95% proficiency. Students in 8th grade also took the Science State
exam and achieved 100% proficiency, this is the first time in schools history.
June 5th was the K-5 Field day which went off without a hitch
Students in grade 6-8 attended field trips this day.
June 5th was also the K-3 spring concert. June 7th was the 5-8 Spring concert.
Both concerts went very well.
June 13th was the 8th grade graduation.
June 15th was the Kindergarten and 5th grade moving up ceremonies. Next year
Mr. Ankrum would like to have all ceremonies on the same day.
Mr. Ankrum would like to create a policy of capping teachers pay and a better
spelled out attendance policy which would be much more defined.



HI. Finance

A. Director of Finance Report
Ms. Graham presented to the board that cash accounts are healthy. A list of
checks written was provided to the board. Ms. Graham filed the title 1 annual
survey regarding poverty status. Ms. Graham informed the board that due to
such a high number in students who are directly certified to receive free meals,
RCS applied for the Community Eligibility Program and was approved. All
students at RCS will now receive free breakfast and lunch regardless of their
meal status.

IV. Governance

A. Convention Debrief
Susan Heintz attended the conferences with Paul O'Niell and Board on track.
Board on track is currently updating to make their website easier to utilize. Some
other items Ms. Heintz took from the Convention were charter refinancing and
keeping costs in specific ranges, charter schools should do private ratings instead
of just S&P. The board of trustees should not be a reactive board but a strategic
board. Ms. Heintz presented a pie chart example regarding finance, which would
allow board members to see an overall view at meetings and allow the finance
committee to break it down and go over before board meetings.
Ms. Heintz informed the board that all members should know the Bond Convent.
Mrs. Arcuri touched base regarding what she learned at the convention. One
topic that stood out was social media use. Mrs. Arcuri would like to create a
policy regarding postings on social media about students. Faculty and staff
should not have any postings regarding students on their social media. As far as
for school purposes for example pictures posted to the school facebook account
or school dojo when classes are on field trips, for the safety of the students no
postings until all teachers and students are back on school campus.
Mrs. Fortunato presented to the board best practices for ELL students. In order to
see a population grow, not labeling a student before you know them. Not sticking
to one single program but using all programs to find the best practice for each
student. The culture of fear and uncertainty finding what the leadership team can
do to help students and families.
ESL after the bell is a program where teachers can work with students after
school.
Mrs. LoMonaco attended conferences on governance, and found that there
should be a calendar with dates for the board for all important items. Board
members should go back one year and re-read all minutes. Mrs. LoMonaco met
with representatives from Board on Track and would like a work session
scheduled. The board is overdue for a board self assessment and an Executive
Director assessment.
Mrs. Graham attended conferences related to finance and best financial
practices. Its extremely important to keep a strong cash on hand which RCS has.
Mrs. Graham learned financial techniques to help with expanding the charter.
Growth and student recruitment using social media along with a google account
creating a pop up.
Mr. Edwards presented that RCS needs to implement specific curriculum. Charter
schools should have a marketing profile to spell out exactly what makes RCS
great.
Ms. Hartfield discussed how the board needs to recruit Latino board members, to
ensure the board is reflective of the school community. Ms. Hartfield learned that
authorizer's are causing legal problems for charter schools and learned what
authorizer can and cannot do. Suggestions were made for Charter Schools to



partner with black colleges and universities to do internships and having those
partnerships can expose kids to college.

B. 2018-2019 Calendar Approval
Susan Heinz made a motion to approve the amended 2018-2019 school calendar
to reflect all students start date as September 4, 2018.
Harry Histand seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

V. Other Business

A. Debit Card Policy Review
Tabled for next meeting.

VI. Closing ltems

A. Enter Executive Session
Harry Histand made a motion to enter executive session at 8:19 PM.
Aimee Lomonaco seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

B. Executive Session Executive Directors Report
C. Principal Interviews

D. Exit Executive Session
Harry Histand made a motion to exit executive session at 9:02 PM.
Aimee Lomonaco seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

E. Adjourn Meeting
Harry Histand made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:03 PM.
Natasha Jeffries seconded the motion.
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 9:03 PM,

Respectfully Submitted,
Kaitlyn Kosiorowski
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Entry 10 Enroliment and Retention of Special

Populations
Last updated: 08/02/2018

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2017-18 toward meeting targets to attract and retain
enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners, and students who are economically
disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress toward meeting
its enrollment and retention targets in 2018-19.

RIVERHEAD CS (REGENTS)Section Heading

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets

Econom
ically
Disadva
ntaged

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2017-18

In order to meet the enrollment and
retention targets for Riverhead Charter
School, a committee was formed at the
beginning of our school year to create and
execute a plan of action. Various ideas were
shared and information was disseminated
among the group and other staff members
also involved in the process.

Our first step is community outreach. A
spreadsheet is created listing locations and
contact information for various targets in the
surrounding area, including but not limited
to; daycare and pre-kindergarten services,
libraries, sports leagues, children’s
attractions, etc. Representatives from
Riverhead Charter School will then visit these
locations to provide informational packets in
both English and Spanish. Partnerships have
also been formed with local Head Starts. This
allows members of the RCS teaching staff to
attend a parent workshop to provide a more
in-depth description of educational
opportunities available at RCS. Highlighted
during all of our recruitment efforts are
specific services offered at RCS such as
programs for Special Education students,
English Language Learners and Response to
Intervention. We strive to provide parents
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Describe Recruitment Plans in 2018-19)

In order to meet the enrollment and retention
targets for Riverhead Charter School, a
committee was formed at the beginning of
our school year to create and execute a plan
of action. Various ideas were shared and
information was disseminated among the
group and other staff members also involved
in the process.

Our first step is community outreach. A
spreadsheet is created listing locations and
contact information for various targets in the
surrounding area, including but not limited
to; daycare and pre-kindergarten services,
libraries, sports leagues, children’s
attractions, etc. Representatives from
Riverhead Charter School will then visit these
locations to provide informational packets in
both English and Spanish. Partnerships have
also been formed with local Head Starts. This
allows members of the RCS teaching staff to
attend a parent workshop to provide a more
in-depth description of educational
opportunities available at RCS. Highlighted
during all of our recruitment efforts are
specific services offered at RCS such as
programs for Special Education students,
English Language Learners and Response to
Intervention. We strive to provide parents



English
Langua
ge
Learner
S

with a complete understanding of the
support all students receive and the inclusive
nature of our school community.

Various media outlets are also used, both
print and social, to invite the community at
large the opportunity to peruse information
about RCS. We frequently advertise in local
newspapers, both English and Spanish
variations, and circulate material regularly
on Facebook and our RCS website. Parents
are encouraged to visit the website to view
every aspect of the student experience
including, daily class lessons, special events,
community service opportunities,
information about our staff and blogs
dedicated to the latest trends in education.
Families may also find invitations to the
various Open Houses and Parent Tours held
throughout the school year, offered in both
English and Spanish.

In order to meet the enrollment and
retention targets for Riverhead Charter
School, a committee was formed at the
beginning of our school year to create and
execute a plan of action. Various ideas were
shared and information was disseminated
among the group and other staff members
also involved in the process.

Our first step is community outreach. A
spreadsheet is created listing locations and
contact information for various targets in the
surrounding area, including but not limited
to; daycare and pre-kindergarten services,
libraries, sports leagues, children’s
attractions, etc. Representatives from
Riverhead Charter School will then visit these
locations to provide informational packets in
both English and Spanish. Partnerships have
also been formed with local Head Starts. This
allows members of the RCS teaching staff to
attend a parent workshop to provide a more
in-depth description of educational
opportunities available at RCS. Highlighted
during all of our recruitment efforts are
specific services offered at RCS such as
programs for Special Education students,
English Language Learners and Response to
Intervention. We strive to provide parents
with a complete understanding of the

2/9

with a complete understanding of the
support all students receive and the inclusive
nature of our school community.

Various media outlets are also used, both
print and social, to invite the community at
large the opportunity to peruse information
about RCS. We frequently advertise in local
newspapers, both English and Spanish
variations, and circulate material regularly on
Facebook, Twitter and our RCS website.
Parents are encouraged to visit the website
to view every aspect of the student
experience including, daily class lessons,
special events, community service
opportunities, information about our staff
and blogs dedicated to the latest trends in
education. Families may also find invitations
to the various Open Houses and Parent Tours
held throughout the school year, offered in
both English and Spanish.

In order to meet the enrollment and retention
targets for Riverhead Charter School, a
committee was formed at the beginning of
our school year to create and execute a plan
of action. Various ideas were shared and
information was disseminated among the
group and other staff members also involved
in the process.

Our first step is community outreach. A
spreadsheet is created listing locations and
contact information for various targets in the
surrounding area, including but not limited
to; daycare and pre-kindergarten services,
libraries, sports leagues, children’s
attractions, etc. Representatives from
Riverhead Charter School will then visit these
locations to provide informational packets in
both English and Spanish. Partnerships have
also been formed with local Head Starts. This
allows members of the RCS teaching staff to
attend a parent workshop to provide a more
in-depth description of educational
opportunities available at RCS. Highlighted
during all of our recruitment efforts are
specific services offered at RCS such as
programs for Special Education students,
English Language Learners and Response to
Intervention. We strive to provide parents
with a complete understanding of the



Student
s with
Disabilit
ies

support all students receive and the inclusive
nature of our school community.

Various media outlets are also used, both
print and social, to invite the community at
large the opportunity to peruse information
about RCS. We frequently advertise in local
newspapers, both English and Spanish
variations, and circulate material regularly
on Facebook and our RCS website. Parents
are encouraged to visit the website to view
every aspect of the student experience
including, daily class lessons, special events,
community service opportunities,
information about our staff and blogs
dedicated to the latest trends in education.
Families may also find invitations to the
various Open Houses and Parent Tours held
throughout the school year, offered in both
English and Spanish.

In order to meet the enrollment and
retention targets for Riverhead Charter
School, a committee was formed at the
beginning of our school year to create and
execute a plan of action. Various ideas were
shared and information was disseminated
among the group and other staff members
also involved in the process.

Our first step is community outreach. A
spreadsheet is created listing locations and
contact information for various targets in the
surrounding area, including but not limited
to; daycare and pre-kindergarten services,
libraries, sports leagues, children’s
attractions, etc. Representatives from
Riverhead Charter School will then visit these
locations to provide informational packets in
both English and Spanish. Partnerships have
also been formed with local Head Starts. This
allows members of the RCS teaching staff to
attend a parent workshop to provide a more
in-depth description of educational
opportunities available at RCS. Highlighted
during all of our recruitment efforts are
specific services offered at RCS such as
programs for Special Education students,
English Language Learners and Response to
Intervention. We strive to provide parents
with a complete understanding of the
support all students receive and the inclusive
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support all students receive and the inclusive
nature of our school community.

Various media outlets are also used, both
print and social, to invite the community at
large the opportunity to peruse information
about RCS. We frequently advertise in local
newspapers, both English and Spanish
variations, and circulate material regularly on
Facebook, Twitter and our RCS website.
Parents are encouraged to visit the website
to view every aspect of the student
experience including, daily class lessons,
special events, community service
opportunities, information about our staff
and blogs dedicated to the latest trends in
education. Families may also find invitations
to the various Open Houses and Parent Tours
held throughout the school year, offered in
both English and Spanish.

In order to meet the enroliment and retention
targets for Riverhead Charter School, a
committee was formed at the beginning of
our school year to create and execute a plan
of action. Various ideas were shared and
information was disseminated among the
group and other staff members also involved
in the process.

Our first step is community outreach. A
spreadsheet is created listing locations and
contact information for various targets in the
surrounding area, including but not limited
to; daycare and pre-kindergarten services,
libraries, sports leagues, children’s
attractions, etc. Representatives from
Riverhead Charter School will then visit these
locations to provide informational packets in
both English and Spanish. Partnerships have
also been formed with local Head Starts. This
allows members of the RCS teaching staff to
attend a parent workshop to provide a more
in-depth description of educational
opportunities available at RCS. Highlighted
during all of our recruitment efforts are
specific services offered at RCS such as
programs for Special Education students,
English Language Learners and Response to
Intervention. We strive to provide parents
with a complete understanding of the
support all students receive and the inclusive



nature of our school community.

Various media outlets are also used, both
print and social, to invite the community at
large the opportunity to peruse information
about RCS. We frequently advertise in local
newspapers, both English and Spanish
variations, and circulate material regularly
on Facebook and our RCS website. Parents
are encouraged to visit the website to view
every aspect of the student experience
including, daily class lessons, special events,
community service opportunities,
information about our staff and blogs
dedicated to the latest trends in education.
Families may also find invitations to the
various Open Houses and Parent Tours held
throughout the school year, offered in both
English and Spanish.

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets

Describe Retention Efforts in 2017-18

At Riverhead Charter School applications are
accepted throughout the school year and we
have continuous open enrollment. To meet
enrollment and retention targets we also
hold various recruitment opportunities and
consistently advertise in local media outlets.
Perspective families are always invited to
visit and/or schedule a tour of the campus.
When applications are received they are
time-stamped and kept in order of receipt.
Our acceptance policy is strictly adhered to
and is as follows: (1) Students of current
employees or board members, (2) Siblings of
current RCS students or accepted students,
(3) Riverhead Central School District
residents, and (4) all other applicants in
order by timestamp. All required paperwork
is available in both English and Spanish.
Riverhead Charter School strives to build a
strong, diverse student community, offering
educational opportunities to a multitude of
learning styles and abilities. Our recruitment
literature reveals our efforts to serve and
accommodate all school-aged learners,
grades kindergarten through 8th grade.
These student populations include, but are
not limited to: English Language Learners,
Students with Disabilities and underserved
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nature of our school community.

Various media outlets are also used, both
print and social, to invite the community at
large the opportunity to peruse information
about RCS. We frequently advertise in local
newspapers, both English and Spanish
variations, and circulate material regularly on
Facebook and our RCS website. Parents are
encouraged to visit the website to view every
aspect of the student experience including,
daily class lessons, special events,
community service opportunities, information
about our staff and blogs dedicated to the
latest trends in education. Families may also
find invitations to the various Open Houses
and Parent Tours held throughout the school
year, offered in both English and Spanish.

Describe Retention Plans in 2018-19)

At Riverhead Charter School applications are
accepted throughout the school year and we
have continuous open enroliment. To meet
enrollment and retention targets we also
hold various recruitment opportunities and
consistently advertise in local media outlets.
Perspective families are always invited to
visit and/or schedule a tour of the campus.
When applications are received they are
time-stamped and kept in order of receipt.
Our acceptance policy is strictly adhered to
and is as follows: (1) Students of current
employees or board members, (2) Siblings of
current RCS students or accepted students,
(3) Riverhead Central School District
residents, and (4) all other applicants in
order by timestamp. All required paperwork
is available in both English and Spanish.
Riverhead Charter School strives to build a
strong, diverse student community, offering
educational opportunities to a multitude of
learning styles and abilities. Our recruitment
literature reveals our efforts to serve and
accommodate all school-aged learners,
grades kindergarten through 8th grade.
These student populations include, but are
not limited to: English Language Learners,



Econom
ically
Disadva
ntaged

and/or economically disadvantaged
students.

To meet the needs of our students, RCS holds
uniform drives during various times of the
year for those who require assistance to
meet the uniform policy. We also offer a
uniform assistance program for new items.
Those determined eligible for free and
reduced priced lunch will receive breakfast
every morning and a hot lunch prepared in
the school cafeteria.

For our learners with special needs we offer
Integrated Co-Teaching settings at every
grade level. Our classes also have English
Language Learning educators available,
kindergarten through eighth grade.
Surrounding districts supply service
providers for those students requiring speech
services, and occupational and/or physical
therapy.

Riverhead Charter School uses various
methods to evaluate recruitment and
outreach strategies and program services to
diverse populations. Staff members attend
community forums to build relationships with
local organizations serving needy
populations. This allows us to engage
community organizers, parents and other
interested parties and inform them of the
services available at RCS. Our recruiters will
visit preschools, day-care agencies, Head
Start and other providers who offer early
intervention services and/or assistance to
low-income families. Those entering
kindergarten will fulfill a thorough screening
process (as in district) to ensure that all
needs are met and all prior services will be
continued upon entrance at any grade level.

At RCS we are always striving to improve and
keep our students in the top ranks of
learning and possibilities. To this point we
continuously work together to make
advances in our recruitment and outreach
strategies for special populations. Our
recruiting committee will meet monthly from
December to April during peak application
times. In January our intent-to-return forms
will be sent home with current students to
gauge the number of spots we will have
open for new students. This form will also
include a section where parents may indicate
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Students with Disabilities and underserved
and/or economically disadvantaged students.

To meet the needs of our students, RCS holds
uniform drives during various times of the
year for those who require assistance to
meet the uniform policy. We also offer a
uniform assistance program for new items.
Those determined eligible for free and
reduced priced lunch will receive breakfast
every morning and a hot lunch prepared in
the school cafeteria.

For our learners with special needs we offer
Integrated Co-Teaching settings at every
grade level. Our classes also have English
Language Learning educators available,
kindergarten through eighth grade.
Surrounding districts supply service providers
for those students requiring speech services,
and occupational and/or physical therapy.
Riverhead Charter School uses various
methods to evaluate recruitment and
outreach strategies and program services to
diverse populations. Staff members attend
community forums to build relationships with
local organizations serving needy
populations. This allows us to engage
community organizers, parents and other
interested parties and inform them of the
services available at RCS. Our recruiters will
visit preschools, day-care agencies, Head
Start and other providers who offer early
intervention services and/or assistance to
low-income families. Those entering
kindergarten will fulfill a thorough screening
process (as in district) to ensure that all
needs are met and all prior services will be
continued upon entrance at any grade level.

At RCS we are always striving to improve and
keep our students in the top ranks of
learning and possibilities. To this point we
continuously work together to make
advances in our recruitment and outreach
strategies for special populations. Our
recruiting committee will meet monthly from
December to April during peak application
times. In January our intent-to-return forms
will be sent home with current students to
gauge the number of spots we will have open
for new students. This form will also include a
section where parents may indicate if they
have an additional student interested in



English
Langua
ge
Learner
S

if they have an additional student interested
in attending RCS during the next school year.
The information we receive from these forms
will assist in determining the number of

accepted students required to meet our goal.

At Riverhead Charter School applications are
accepted throughout the school year and we
have continuous open enroliment. To meet
enrollment and retention targets we also
hold various recruitment opportunities and
consistently advertise in local media outlets.
Perspective families are always invited to
visit and/or schedule a tour of the campus.
When applications are received they are
time-stamped and kept in order of receipt.
Our acceptance policy is strictly adhered to
and is as follows: (1) Students of current
employees or board members, (2) Siblings of
current RCS students or accepted students,
(3) Riverhead Central School District
residents, and (4) all other applicants in
order by timestamp. All required paperwork
is available in both English and Spanish.
Riverhead Charter School strives to build a
strong, diverse student community, offering
educational opportunities to a multitude of
learning styles and abilities. Our recruitment
literature reveals our efforts to serve and
accommodate all school-aged learners,
grades kindergarten through 8th grade.
These student populations include, but are
not limited to: English Language Learners,
Students with Disabilities and underserved
and/or economically disadvantaged
students.

To meet the needs of our students, RCS holds
uniform drives during various times of the
year for those who require assistance to
meet the uniform policy. We also offer a
uniform assistance program for new items.
Those determined eligible for free and
reduced priced lunch will receive breakfast
every morning and a hot lunch prepared in
the school cafeteria.

For our learners with special needs we offer
Integrated Co-Teaching settings at every
grade level. Our classes also have English
Language Learning educators available,
kindergarten through eighth grade.
Surrounding districts supply service
providers for those students requiring speech
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attending RCS during the next school year.
The information we receive from these forms
will assist in determining the number of
accepted students required to meet our goal.

At Riverhead Charter School applications are
accepted throughout the school year and we
have continuous open enrollment. To meet
enrollment and retention targets we also
hold various recruitment opportunities and
consistently advertise in local media outlets.
Perspective families are always invited to
visit and/or schedule a tour of the campus.
When applications are received they are
time-stamped and kept in order of receipt.
Our acceptance policy is strictly adhered to
and is as follows: (1) Students of current
employees or board members, (2) Siblings of
current RCS students or accepted students,
(3) Riverhead Central School District
residents, and (4) all other applicants in
order by timestamp. All required paperwork
is available in both English and Spanish.
Riverhead Charter School strives to build a
strong, diverse student community, offering
educational opportunities to a multitude of
learning styles and abilities. Our recruitment
literature reveals our efforts to serve and
accommodate all school-aged learners,
grades kindergarten through 8th grade.
These student populations include, but are
not limited to: English Language Learners,
Students with Disabilities and underserved
and/or economically disadvantaged students.

To meet the needs of our students, RCS holds
uniform drives during various times of the
year for those who require assistance to
meet the uniform policy. We also offer a
uniform assistance program for new items.
Those determined eligible for free and
reduced priced lunch will receive breakfast
every morning and a hot lunch prepared in
the school cafeteria.

For our learners with special needs we offer
Integrated Co-Teaching settings at every
grade level. Our classes also have English
Language Learning educators available,
kindergarten through eighth grade.
Surrounding districts supply service providers
for those students requiring speech services,



services, and occupational and/or physical
therapy.

Riverhead Charter School uses various
methods to evaluate recruitment and
outreach strategies and program services to
diverse populations. Staff members attend
community forums to build relationships with
local organizations serving needy
populations. This allows us to engage
community organizers, parents and other
interested parties and inform them of the
services available at RCS. Our recruiters will
visit preschools, day-care agencies, Head
Start and other providers who offer early
intervention services and/or assistance to
low-income families. Those entering
kindergarten will fulfill a thorough screening
process (as in district) to ensure that all
needs are met and all prior services will be
continued upon entrance at any grade level.

At RCS we are always striving to improve and
keep our students in the top ranks of
learning and possibilities. To this point we
continuously work together to make
advances in our recruitment and outreach
strategies for special populations. Our
recruiting committee will meet monthly from
December to April during peak application
times. In January our intent-to-return forms
will be sent home with current students to
gauge the number of spots we will have
open for new students. This form will also
include a section where parents may indicate
if they have an additional student interested
in attending RCS during the next school year.
The information we receive from these forms
will assist in determining the number of
accepted students required to meet our goal.

At Riverhead Charter School applications are
accepted throughout the school year and we
have continuous open enrollment. To meet
enrollment and retention targets we also
hold various recruitment opportunities and
consistently advertise in local media outlets.
Perspective families are always invited to
visit and/or schedule a tour of the campus.
When applications are received they are
time-stamped and kept in order of receipt.
Our acceptance policy is strictly adhered to
and is as follows: (1) Students of current
employees or board members, (2) Siblings of
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and occupational and/or physical therapy.
Riverhead Charter School uses various
methods to evaluate recruitment and
outreach strategies and program services to
diverse populations. Staff members attend
community forums to build relationships with
local organizations serving needy
populations. This allows us to engage
community organizers, parents and other
interested parties and inform them of the
services available at RCS. Our recruiters will
visit preschools, day-care agencies, Head
Start and other providers who offer early
intervention services and/or assistance to
low-income families. Those entering
kindergarten will fulfill a thorough screening
process (as in district) to ensure that all
needs are met and all prior services will be
continued upon entrance at any grade level.

At RCS we are always striving to improve and
keep our students in the top ranks of
learning and possibilities. To this point we
continuously work together to make
advances in our recruitment and outreach
strategies for special populations. Our
recruiting committee will meet monthly from
December to April during peak application
times. In January our intent-to-return forms
will be sent home with current students to
gauge the number of spots we will have open
for new students. This form will also include a
section where parents may indicate if they
have an additional student interested in
attending RCS during the next school year.
The information we receive from these forms
will assist in determining the number of
accepted students required to meet our goal.

At Riverhead Charter School applications are
accepted throughout the school year and we
have continuous open enrollment. To meet
enrollment and retention targets we also
hold various recruitment opportunities and
consistently advertise in local media outlets.
Perspective families are always invited to
visit and/or schedule a tour of the campus.
When applications are received they are
time-stamped and kept in order of receipt.
Our acceptance policy is strictly adhered to
and is as follows: (1) Students of current



current RCS students or accepted students,
(3) Riverhead Central School District
residents, and (4) all other applicants in
order by timestamp. All required paperwork
is available in both English and Spanish.
Riverhead Charter School strives to build a
strong, diverse student community, offering
educational opportunities to a multitude of
learning styles and abilities. Our recruitment
literature reveals our efforts to serve and
accommodate all school-aged learners,
grades kindergarten through 8th grade.
These student populations include, but are
not limited to: English Language Learners,
Students with Disabilities and underserved
and/or economically disadvantaged
students.

To meet the needs of our students, RCS holds
uniform drives during various times of the
year for those who require assistance to
meet the uniform policy. We also offer a
uniform assistance program for new items.
Those determined eligible for free and
reduced priced lunch will receive breakfast
every morning and a hot lunch prepared in
the school cafeteria.

For our learners with special needs we offer
Integrated Co-Teaching settings at every
grade level. Our classes also have English
Language Learning educators available,
kindergarten through eighth grade.
Surrounding districts supply service
providers for those students requiring speech
services, and occupational and/or physical
therapy.

Riverhead Charter School uses various
methods to evaluate recruitment and
outreach strategies and program services to
diverse populations. Staff members attend
community forums to build relationships with
local organizations serving needy
populations. This allows us to engage
community organizers, parents and other
interested parties and inform them of the
services available at RCS. Our recruiters will
visit preschools, day-care agencies, Head
Start and other providers who offer early
intervention services and/or assistance to
low-income families. Those entering
kindergarten will fulfill a thorough screening
process (as in district) to ensure that all
needs are met and all prior services will be
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employees or board members, (2) Siblings of
current RCS students or accepted students,
(3) Riverhead Central School District
residents, and (4) all other applicants in
order by timestamp. All required paperwork
is available in both English and Spanish.
Riverhead Charter School strives to build a
strong, diverse student community, offering
educational opportunities to a multitude of
learning styles and abilities. Our recruitment
literature reveals our efforts to serve and
accommodate all school-aged learners,
grades kindergarten through 8th grade.
These student populations include, but are
not limited to: English Language Learners,
Students with Disabilities and underserved
and/or economically disadvantaged students.

To meet the needs of our students, RCS holds
uniform drives during various times of the
year for those who require assistance to
meet the uniform policy. We also offer a
uniform assistance program for new items.
Those determined eligible for free and
reduced priced lunch will receive breakfast
every morning and a hot lunch prepared in
the school cafeteria.

For our learners with special needs we offer
Integrated Co-Teaching settings at every
grade level. Our classes also have English
Language Learning educators available,
kindergarten through eighth grade.
Surrounding districts supply service providers
for those students requiring speech services,
and occupational and/or physical therapy.
Riverhead Charter School uses various
methods to evaluate recruitment and
outreach strategies and program services to
diverse populations. Staff members attend
community forums to build relationships with
local organizations serving needy
populations. This allows us to engage
community organizers, parents and other
interested parties and inform them of the
services available at RCS. Our recruiters will
visit preschools, day-care agencies, Head
Start and other providers who offer early
intervention services and/or assistance to
low-income families. Those entering
kindergarten will fulfill a thorough screening
process (as in district) to ensure that all
needs are met and all prior services will be
continued upon entrance at any grade level.



continued upon entrance at any grade level.

At RCS we are always striving to improve and
keep our students in the top ranks of
learning and possibilities. To this point we
continuously work together to make
advances in our recruitment and outreach
strategies for special populations. Our
recruiting committee will meet monthly from
December to April during peak application
times. In January our intent-to-return forms
will be sent home with current students to
gauge the number of spots we will have
open for new students. This form will also
include a section where parents may indicate
if they have an additional student interested
in attending RCS during the next school year.
The information we receive from these forms
will assist in determining the number of
accepted students required to meet our goal.
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At RCS we are always striving to improve and
keep our students in the top ranks of
learning and possibilities. To this point we
continuously work together to make
advances in our recruitment and outreach
strategies for special populations. Our
recruiting committee will meet monthly from
December to April during peak application
times. In January our intent-to-return forms
will be sent home with current students to
gauge the number of spots we will have open
for new students. This form will also include a
section where parents may indicate if they
have an additional student interested in
attending RCS during the next school year.
The information we receive from these forms
will assist in determining the number of
accepted students required to meet our goal.
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator
Attrition

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing.

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables
Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2017-2018 Classroom Teacher and
Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing
during the 2017-2018 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of
staff on June 30, 2017; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2017 through June
30, 2018; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018; and the
FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018
using the tables provided.

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE of

Teachers on Teachers Teachers Filling Teachers Added  Classroom

6/30/17 Departed 7/1/17 Vacant Positions in New Positions Teachers on
- 6/30/18 7/1/17 - 6/30/18 7/1/17 - 6/30/18 6/3018

36 6 6 11 47

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table

FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE

Administrative Administrators Administrators Administrators Administrative

Positions on Departed 7/1/17  Filling Vacant Added in New Positions on

6/30/17 - 6/30/18 Positions 7/1/17  Positions 7/1/17 6/30/18
-6/30/18 - 6/30/18

6 0 0 1 7
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3. Tell your school's story

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some
teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within
the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a
teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school.

(No response)

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance
through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA)
prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of
individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been
terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH

system.

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system?

Yes

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you
terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system?

Not Applicable

Thank you
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http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/

ﬁ Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers

FTE Count of All Teachers 47
Certified and Uncertified) as of

6/30/18

FTE Count of All Certified 46

Teachers as of 6/30/18

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each
column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers
would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include
paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants.

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be
counted only once.
FTE Count
1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6-30-18) 46

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching 1
experience (6-30-18)

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or
tenure track college faculty (6-30-18)

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6-30-18)

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military 1
experience (6-30-18)

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6-30-18)

Thank you.
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HOLIDAYS staff begins PD
August 31 Superintendent's Conference Day
September 3 Labor Day 1/2 day
September 4 First Day for All Students
September 10-11 Rosh Hashanah Parent conf 1/2 day
September 19 Yom Kippur
October 8 Columbus Day Professional Development 1/2 day
November 12 Veterans Day
November 22-23 Thanksgiving Recess 1/2 day last days of school
Dec 24 - Jan 1 Winter Recess
January 21 Martin Luther King's Birthday { } Superintendants Conf Day
February 18-22 Mid Winter Recess
April 19 Good Friday
April 19-26 Spring Recess * 185 Instructional Days
May 27 Memorial Day * 3 Supt. Conf. Day (8/31/2018, 6/27-28/19)
June 26 Last day of student attendance * 3 Snow Days 5/24, 6/27 and 6/28
June 27 & 28 Superintendent's Conference Day 191 Total Days
June 28 Last day of school




*

*

*

*

*

*

*

If 0 snow days used, NO School on 5/24, 6/27 and 6/28

If 1 snow day used, NO School on 5/24, 6/27

If 2 snow day used, NO School on 5/24

If 3 snow day used, calendar unchanged

If 4 snow day used, School in Session for students on 6/27
If 5 snow day used, School in Session for students on 6/28
If 6 snow day used, School in Session for students on 4/26
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